
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY 
PANEL  

 

TUESDAY 13 SEPTEMBER 2005 
7.30 PM  

 
PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 5 

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Burchell 

 
Councillors: 

 
Idaikkadar 
N Shah 
Anne Whitehead (VC) 
 

Marilyn Ashton 
Mrs Bath 
Mrs Kinnear 
 

  

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Blann 
2. Bluston 
3. Ray 
4. Miles 
 

1. Kara 
2. Versallion 
3. Harriss 
 

  

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 
Contact:  Kate Boulter, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1269    E-mail:  kate.boulter@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY PANEL  
 
TUESDAY 13 SEPTEMBER 2005 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) after notifying the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

4. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 4) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2005, having been 

circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

5. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

6. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 13 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

7. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

8. Mobility and Wheelchair Housing Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD):  (Pages 5 - 58) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Strategy (Urban Living). 
 



 

 

9. Statement of Community Involvement (SCI): Initial Consultation 
Responses:  (Pages 59 - 84) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Strategy (Urban Living). 
 

10. Draft London Plan Alterations - Housing Provision Targets; Planning for 
Waste:  (Pages 85 - 88) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Strategy (Urban Living). 
 

  AGENDA - PART II (PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED) - NIL   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET  VOL. 10  CSPAP 9  

STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY PANEL  16 MARCH 2005 

Chair: * Councillor Burchell 
   
Councillors: * Marilyn Ashton 

* Mrs Bath 
* Idaikkadar 

* Mrs Kinnear 
* Ray (3) 
* Anne Whitehead 

Non-voting 
Co-opted Member: 

  Councillor Branch 

* Denotes Member present 
(3) Denotes category of Reserve Member 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS 

RECOMMENDATION 1 - Development Brief - Land at Honeypot Lane

The Panel received a report of the Director of Strategic Planning, which included a 
revised draft of the Development Brief for land at Honeypot Lane.  It was reported that, 
following the Panel’s consideration of an earlier draft of the Brief at its meeting on 2 
December 2004, officers had further considered the position of the Environment 
Agency on flood risk, and had assessed a range of access and traffic issues.  The 
outcome of these findings were detailed in the revised Brief.  Minor changes had also 
been made in line with newly published planning policy and further representations 
made on behalf of the major landowner and adjoining businesses. 

The Director of Strategic Planning explained that approval of the Brief, which took into 
account the views of relevant stakeholders, would improve service delivery by 
establishing a planning framework that would guide further use and development of the 
site.  The Brief would assist the Council in considering future proposals and help 
facilitate the implementation of a key Proposal Site in the Unitary Development Plan. 

The Panel discussed the revised content of the Brief and made the following points: 

• The Panel agreed that it was important to recognise the current use of existing 
businesses in Parr Road and welcomed the degree of protection for these 
businesses that was contained within the Brief. 

• A Member felt that the number of additional units required made the density 
too high. 

• A Member commented that they were uneasy about the use of a large 
employment site. 

• A Member stated that she would like to see a 50/50 balance of 
social/intermediate housing, to provide greater opportunity for local employees 
to benefit from shared ownership. 

• Members agreed that it would be helpful to visit an example of an established 
mixed-use site. 

Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (to Cabinet) 

That (1) the Development Brief for Land at Honeypot Lane be approved; and 

(2) the Development Control Committee be informed when the Brief has been 
approved.

[REASON: To establish a planning framework to guide the future use and development 
of the site]. 

(See also Minute 30). 

RECOMMENDATION 2 - Government Consultation on PPS10: Planning for 
Sustainable Waste Management

The Panel received a report of the Director of Strategy (Urban Living), which included a 
draft of the Council’s response to the Government consultation on PPS10: Planning for 
Sustainable Waste Management. 

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 4

1



CSPAP 10  VOL. 10 CABINET

The Panel discussed the draft response. Members made detailed comments on 
specific items and their requests for changes were recorded by officers.  The following 
general issues were noted: 

• Officers advised that the waste management emphasis was on minimisation, 
recycling and processing rather than landfill.  The emphasis on sub-regional 
arrangements was important to enable the identification of facilities which could 
be grouped together and prevent proliferation of sites. 

• Members expressed some concern at the requirement for “redundant farm 
buildings” to be identified as sites for new waste management capacity, 
particularly in relation to later re-use of sites that had been used for waste 
purposes.  Officers advised that, at planning permission stage, stringent 
reclamation and restoration conditions would be agreed for any waste tip sites. 

• The format of the consultation had meant that officers had to constrain their 
responses to the questions asked.  Officers felt that this might not be the most 
effective method of consulting, and suggested that a different approach by the 
ODPM might be better in future. 

• The Panel noted that no guidance or references to other documents had been 
provided to assist respondents in completing the consultation questionnaire.  
The Panel suggested that the final PPS be a self-contained document and 
include short extracts of the main points from the documents it refers to, to 
avoid missing out important facts. 

• Some Members felt that it would be helpful for each Member to have their own 
copy of the PPSs, rather than one copy being available in each Group Office. 

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to the Leader) 

That the response to the Government Consultation on PPS10: Planning for Sustainable 
Waste Management, as now amended, be agreed. 

[REASON: To enable the Council to set out its position with regard to the spatial 
planning of waste management]. 

(See also Minute 31). 

PART II - MINUTES 

23. Attendance by Reserve Members:

RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly appointed 
Reserve Member:- 

Ordinary Member Reserve Member
Councillor N Shah Councillor Ray

24. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED: To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in 
relation to business transacted at this meeting. 

25. Arrangement of Agenda:   

RESOLVED: That (1) all items be considered with the press and public present; 

(2) in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985, the following item/information be admitted to the agenda by reason of the 
special circumstances and grounds for urgency stated: 

Agenda Item Special Circumstances/Reasons for Urgency

4. Minutes The minutes were not available when the main 
agenda was printed.

2



CABINET  VOL. 10  CSPAP 11  

26. Minutes:

RESOLVED: (1) That the Chair be given authority to sign the minutes of the Special 
meeting held on 1 March 2005, those minutes having been circulated, as a correct 
record of that meeting, once printed in the Council Bound Volume; and 

(2) in response to a request from a Member, that the Chair would consult with the Chair 
of Cabinet to ascertain whether the full minutes of the Panel’s meetings could be 
submitted to Cabinet as a matter of course. 

27. Public Questions:

RESOLVED: To note that there were no public questions to be received at this meeting 
under the provisions of the Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 

28. Petitions:

RESOLVED: To note that there were no petitions to be received at this meeting under 
the provisions of the Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 13 (Part 
4E of the Constitution). 

29. Deputations:

RESOLVED: To note that there were no deputations to be received at this meeting 
under the provisions of the Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 

30. Land at Honeypot Lane - Development Brief:
Further to Recommendation 1 above it was  

RESOLVED:  That officers be requested to investigate whether there were any mixed-
use sites within the M25 areas that Panel Members could visit. 

31. Government Consultation on PPS10: Planning for Sustainable Waste 
Management:
Further to Recommendation 2 above, it was 

RESOLVED:  That the Director of Strategy (Urban Living), the Director of Strategic 
Planning and the Chair of the Panel, when discussing how best to set up a resource 
library for Members, take into consideration Members’ request that they each receive a 
copy of key documents. 

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 8.35 pm) 

(Signed) COUNCILLOR KEITH BURCHELL 
Chair 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\4\AI00023404\MobilityandWheelchairHousingSupplementaryPlanningDocumentSPD0.doc 

 
 
 

 
Meeting:   
 

Strategic Planning Advisory Panel 

Date: 
 

Tuesday 13th September 2005 

Subject: 
 

Mobility and Wheelchair Housing 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Director of Strategy (Urban Living) 

Contact Officer: 
 

Ali Kashmiri, Access Officer 

Portfolio Holder:  
 

Planning, Development and Housing 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Status: 
 

Public 

 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
The Panel is recommended to:- 
(i) note the content of this report and agree it in principle; 
(ii) note progress and the need to commence the initial work on the engagement 
with the four statutory consultation authorities with environmental responsibilities 
in line with the European Directive 2001/42/EC Strategic Environmental 
Assessment Directive (SEA) and the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) process under 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act. 
(iii) note that, following (ii), subsequent consultation will also be required to be 
undertaken with relevant authorities, the public and key stakeholders on the 
scope of the Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD and its accompanying 
Sustainability Appraisal. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 5 to 58

5



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\4\AI00023404\MobilityandWheelchairHousingSupplementaryPlanningDocumentSPD0.doc 

Reason for report 
 
The purpose of this report is to inform members of the progress made in respect 
of this SPD and its accompanying Sustainability Appraisal Report.  Planning 
policy relating to Mobility and Wheelchair Housing in the second deposit Harrow 
Unitary Development Plan (HUDP) was subject to certain objections considered 
at the Public Inquiry. Policy H18 – Accessible Homes was subsequently included 
in the adopted HUDP. In order to provide more detailed guidance on the 
application of the Policy, the Council included the production of a supplementary 
planning document in its Local Development Scheme. Following the Government 
Office for London’s consideration of the submitted LDS, it requested that the 
Council consult GOL on the developing Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD.  
 
 
Benefits 
 
To ensure that access considerations form an integral part of the development 
process.  To ensure local services and facilities are accessible to everyone. 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
The cost of producing the SPD and associated SA will be met within the  
approved Departmental budget. 
 
Risks 
 
Failure to carry out the procedures set down in the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 and Regulations would render the Council open to legal 
challenge.  Delay in meeting the Local Development Scheme (LDS) timetable 
milestones may also lead to a reduction in the Planning Delivery Grant (PDG). 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
This will lead to a failure to meet the approved LDS timetable. 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
The London Plan states that all housing developments should be built to a 
minimum of Lifetime Home standards.  At present provision in Harrow is usually 
secured through negotiations with the Council’s Access Officer.  Wheelchair 
standard housing, on the other hand, is housing that is specifically designed for 
wheelchair users with high-level support needs, or for disabled people who have 
greater than average space requirements.  
 
The Council has decided that a Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD is required 
to demonstrate how all proposals for residential development could address the 
needs of disabled people through the design and location of buildings that are 
adaptable and capable of use by wheelchair users. The Council wishes to 
amplify on the implementation of Policy H18 and further emphasise its 

6



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\4\AI00023404\MobilityandWheelchairHousingSupplementaryPlanningDocumentSPD0.doc 

commitment to securing Lifetime housing.  Dwellings originally built as Lifetime 
Homes avoid the need for costly adaptation at a later date, and reduce the costs 
of personal or residential care. This also places people who become disabled in 
a favourable position in as much as they do not have to move house.  
 
Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) & Sustainability Appraisal (SA) 
All documents produced within the Local Development Framework (LDF) are 
subject to a SA to inform decision-making by providing information on possible 
implications of policies, proposals and guidance in terms of social, environmental 
and economic factors. Work on the Strategic Environmental Assessment/SA for 
the whole LDF process has been started in order to ensure that all 
considerations are integrated into all of the stages of the plan-making process, 
including SPDs. The SA report which has been prepared to go with the Mobility 
and Wheelchair Housing SPD therefore draws on this work and develops it as far 
as is relevant to the document. This is a working draft however, and will be 
subject to further improvement before formal public consultation. The working 
draft of the Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD is attached as Appendix 1 and 
the working draft of the SA as Appendix 2. 

 
2.2 Options considered 
Due consideration has been given to several options.  However, the LDS agreed 
by Cabinet on 23rd June identifies production of an SPD as being the most 
appropriate option in Harrow. 

 
2.3 Consultation 
The stages for producing the SPD, as set down in the approved LDS, will follow 
the appropriate procedures, including the means of engagement set down in the 
draft Statement of Community Involvement (SCI).   

 
2.4 Financial Implications 
Costs are contained within the approved Departmental budget. 

 
2.5 Legal Implications 
(Comments included in the report) 

 
2.6 Equalities Impact 
Both the SPD and SA promote equality of opportunity and social inclusion.  
 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/Background Documents 
Background Documents:  
 

1. The Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive: Guidance for Planning 
Authorities. ODPM, London, October 2003 

2. Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local 
Development Frameworks: Consultation Paper, ODPM, September 2004  

3. Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local 
Development Frameworks: Interim Advise Note on Frequently Asked 
Questions, ODPM, London, April 2005 

4. Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development  
5. Planning Policy Guidance 3: Housing 

7



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\4\AI00023404\MobilityandWheelchairHousingSupplementaryPlanningDocumentSPD0.doc 

6. The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) 
7. Planning and Access for Disabled People: A Good Practice Guide from the 

Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 
8. Part M to the Building Regulations: May 2004 
9. British Standard 8300; 2001- Code of Practice 
10. Lifetime Home Standards, Joseph Rowntree Foundation 
11. Wheelchair Housing Design Guide, 1997, BRE Publications 
12. Scheme Development Standards, 2003, Fifth Edition 
13. The London Plan (Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London), Mayor 

of London, February 2004.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

8



1 Introduction 
The purpose of this guidance is to supplement Policy H18 – Accessible 
Homes in the saved Harrow Unitary Development Plan (HUDP adopted 
July 2004). The policy is set out in Section 4. It is intended to provide 
this additional guidance to assist developers and those preparing 
planning applications. 

  
At the outset it would be helpful to clarify certain definitions.  The 
glossary in the HUDP includes a brief definition of the terms ‘Mobility 
Housing’ and ‘Lifetime Homes’, These can be amplified as follows:- 
  
Mobility Housing is ordinary housing built to a certain basic standard so 
that it can be adapted to be lived in by most people with disabilities. 
Even amongst those who use wheelchairs a high proportion can 
manage without them inside their homes. Mobility Housing is also 
suitable for visitors in wheelchairs. The principle features are:  
 
(a) a level or ramped approach and flush threshold at the main 

entrance;  
(b) corridors and door sets to the principal rooms (including a 

bedroom) wide enough for wheelchair use; and 
(c) a bathroom, WC and at least one bedroom at entrance level. 

 
Houses on two storeys are suitable if they have a downstairs WC and a 
straight flight staircase suitable for the installation of a stair-lift. Overall 
space standards are the same as for ordinary housing, and mobility 
housing need cost no more to construct. Indeed the particular design 
features of mobility housing are desirable and convenient for any 
potential occupier, not just people with disabilities. 

Lifetime Homes are dwellings which are designed to a standard that 
allows easy adaptation to meet the needs of occupiers throughout their 
whole life. The criteria and design standards have been defined by the 
Joseph Rowntree Foundation. 

In addition, Wheelchair housing can be defined as follows.  It is 
housing needed by people permanently confined to wheelchairs 
(estimated to be about 2-3% of all people with disabilities). It generally 
needs to be on one level and in addition to easy access, it has above-
average space standards in order to allow for full wheelchair 
manoeuvre throughout. As such it will be desirable for any occupier, 
not solely people confined to wheelchairs. The principal features 
required at construction stage in order to permit adaptation to full 
wheelchair standards at a later date are:  

(a) a level or slightly ramped approach and flush threshold at the 
main entrance; 

(b) internal planning for wheelchair manoeuvre in all principal 
rooms, with 1200mm passageways and 900mm door sets or 
sliding doors; 

9



(c) a downstairs bedroom and bathroom, or in a two storey house, a 
downstairs WC a straight flight staircase suitable for the 
installation of a stair or chair lift; and 

(d) bathrooms and toilets large enough to permit lateral transfer 
from wheelchair to WC/Bath. 

 
People who use wheelchairs are as varied in their housing needs as 
the rest of the population. Very little current housing, or new 
conversions, are suitable for people permanently confined to 
wheelchairs. In order to redress this imbalance and give people with 
disabilities a choice of housing of different types and tenures and to 
enable more people to remain in their homes if they become disabled, 
a proportion of new build, general purpose housing needs to be built to 
be suitable for adaptation for wheelchair occupants. Because there is 
an additional cost in providing the more generous than average space 
standards required, it is appropriate that wheelchair housing is 
provided in larger schemes. There may occasionally be overriding 
reasons why certain sites are unsuitable; for example where there are 
overwhelming conservation reasons for architectural conformity which 
would make it impracticable to provide satisfactory level access to the 
dwelling. 
 

2 Reason for the Production of the Mobility and Wheelchair Housing 
SPD and Plan Options 
This Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD aims to ensure that new 
residential developments, including conversions and extensions, are of 
good quality in order to maintain and enhance the residential 
component and character of the Borough. More importantly it aims to 
provide and retain a range of housing types and sizes, of a satisfactory 
standard and design, to meet the varied physical and economic needs 
of the Borough’s residents.  The London Plan requires London 
boroughs to ensure that all housing developments are built to a 
minimum of Lifetime Home standards. 
 
Older people and people with physical disabilities require housing 
which is designed to help them retain maximum independence. There 
is also a need for housing which is not specifically designed for 
disabled people but adaptable and designed to be adjustable in 
accordance to the changing physical and medical circumstances.  The 
Council considers that Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair housing should 
generally form part of the fabric of general housing. 
 
The London Plan targets of 100% Lifetime Homes, 10% wheelchair-
accessible homes, and its general requirements for access for all, are 
fundamental to providing the right homes in the right place. It requires 
London Boroughs to ensure that all housing developments are built to 
a minimum of Lifetime Home standards.  The London Plan also 
acknowledges that successful high-density housing will not be possible 
without the highest standards of urban design. 
 

10



At present the majority of Mobility, Wheelchair or Lifetime housing is 
secured through negotiations with the Council’s Access Officer.  This 
SPD addresses both the delivery of Lifetime and Wheelchair Standard 
housing and ensuring good design in the delivery of such housing, and 
housing in general. 
 
The potential number of people who would benefit from the provision of 
Lifetime and Wheelchair standard housing is substantial. This 
observation results from both the number of older and disabled people 
living in Harrow and because Harrow has a growing aging population.  
 
There is no precise information about the quality, quantity and 
distribution of Wheelchair Housing in the Borough.  However the 
demand for this type of accommodation has increased over the years 
especially now that people mostly prefer to remain in their homes. The 
Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD will enable the Council to 
influence new housing developments so that they are designed in a 
way which will reduce the need for adaptations in the future. 

 
3 Purpose of The Guidance 

 
The Council wishes to amplify on the implementation of policy H18 and 
further emphasise its commitment to securing Lifetime housing.  
Dwellings originally built as Lifetime homes avoid the need for costly 
adaptation at a later date, and reduce the costs of personal or 
residential care. Therefore this guidance supplements the HUDP policy 
by setting detailed advice on how to achieve the maximum levels of 
Mobility and Wheelchair housing in the Borough.  This would assist in 
the promotion of inclusive society and allow people who become 
disabled at any time to remain in their premises despite changed 
circumstances. 

 
 Whilst the purpose of Part M of the Building Regulations would assist in 

terms of internal arrangement, this guidance deals with the total 
environment that is internal and external.  It covers parking circulation 
areas, access and furniture. 

 
 At this stage it is worthwhile acknowledging the possible confusion that 

may be caused by the title of this SPD, linked to the Accessible  
Homes Policy. To avoid possible future confusion, the Council wishes 
to amend the title from ‘Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD’ to 
‘Accessible Homes SPD’. This will be secured through a change to be 
notified in the Annual Monitoring Report which reports on progress on 
the Local Development Scheme timetable. 
 

4 Policy HI8 – Accessible Homes 
The Mobility and Wheelchair Housing SPD is supplementary to the 
Harrow Unitary Development Plan [HUDP] and will form part of the 
Local Development Framework [LDF].  The SPD amplifies policy H18 
which states: 

11



 
THE COUNCIL WILL ENCOURAGE NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, 
INCLUDING CHANGES OF USE AND CONVERSIONS OF 
BUILDINGS INTO FLATS, TO BE ACCESSIBLE TO ALL. IN LARGER 
RESIDENTIAL SCHEMES, THE COUNCIL WILL SEEK TO ENSURE 
THAT A PROPORTION OF THESE ARE BUILT AS LIFETIME HOMES 
OR CAPABLE OF ADAPTATION TO WHEELCHAIR HOUSING. ALL 
WHEELCHAIR HOUSING, PROVIDED AS PART OF A NEW 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, SHOULD BE IN A SUITABLE 
LOCATION IN ORDER TO MEET THE NEEDS OF THE OCCUPANTS. 

 
5 Application of the Guidance 

Wheelchair Housing units should generally be integrated with general 
housing and should have easy access to communal facilities such as 
car parking.  They should be designed to be suitable for residents who 
have to use a wheelchair all the time. The dwelling should be designed 
in a way that make it possible for the occupier to gain access to all 
principal rooms.  In general terms this requires more than above 
average space standards. 
 
In addition to promoting well-designed Wheelchair Standard homes, 
the SPD will encourage developers to adhere to the guidance and 
detailed specifications, in an effort to create wheelchair accessible 
homes that are not grouped together and which are designed to blend 
in with the surrounding properties.  This will ensure that those with 
specific housing needs have a greater degree of housing choice, are 
integrated within society, and will be less susceptible to disability 
related burglary and hate crime. 
 
Wheelchair housing units should generally be integrated with normal 
housing.  This is to ensure that such housing types are integrated and 
inclusive, thereby also reducing the chances of break-ins to housing 
which is known to belong to disabled people. Hence special attention 
should also be given to avoiding problems associated with isolation 
 

6. Considerations on individual developments/sites 
Policy H18 indicates that applicants will be encouraged to provide a 
proportion of the numbers of dwellings on any site to Lifetime and 
Wheelchair housing standards. When deciding the level of Lifetime and 
Wheelchair housing required in any scheme the following factors are 
paramount: 

 
• Gradients on the site; 
• Transport links; and 
• Local shopping other facilities and services. 

 
In addition to the above, consideration should also be given to other 
factors such as: 

• Age structure of the local population 
• The dwelling types 

12



 
The Council may carry out an assessment of the individual site in 
accordance to the principles of design set in this guidance.  The 
detailed guidance below will aid developers and the Council in 
negotiating the appropriate levels of Lifetime and Mobility housing in a 
housing scheme.  This guidance should not simply be applied on a 
mechanical basis but always applied as part of an assessment of site 
considerations 
 

13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accessible Homes: Mobility and Wheelchair Housing: 
 
 
 

A guide to well-designed Mobility and Wheelchair Housing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 
 
 
Table of Contents for SPD: 
 
 
 
Foreword 
 
Introduction 
 
Inclusive Design 
 
Access Legislation 
 
Policy Context and Review 
 
Case Study example: 
Stanmore Park redevelopment 
 
Design solutions and recommendations 
 
Conclusions 
 
 

15



FOREWORD 
 
With demand increasing for living accommodation that truly embraces the 
needs of our diverse community, Harrow Council is driving forward its 
commitment to promote homes which meet the demands of people, 
throughout their lifetime, irrespective of disability, old age or changes in 
lifestyles. 
 
In today’s world it is difficult to perceive a public place that is successful if it is 
not accessible to everyone.  Likewise, when we consider people, their 
houses, and their living requirements as a primary concern, we come to 
realise that successful and sustainable communities are achieved only by 
making access considerations a pre-requisite of good design. 
 
In recognising the social and economic benefits that accessible homes bring 
to the community, Harrow Council will only welcome development applications 
that support the principles of access as an integral part of the whole design.  
With concerted effort and teamwork, accessible developments that are 
attractive, profitable and fit for 21st century living, can be built to serve the 
entire community. 

16



 
Introduction 

 
Government legislation requires Harrow Council to ensure that new residential 
developments meet the needs of most householders.  These design features 
provide for a home which is flexible enough to meet whatever comes along in 
life: a teenager with a broken leg, a family member with serious illness, 
carrying in heavy loads, or the frailties of old age.  Harrow Council is fully 
committed to the principle of producing well-designed homes and therefore, will not 
welcome development applications that potentially involve the future 
adaptation of a home. 
 
The aim of this guide is to highlight the most important principles in designing 
accessible homes and is particularly aimed at architects, developers and 
builders of a range of residential developments.  Produced as a 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), this guide seeks to illustrate the 
best ways to achieve well-designed accessible homes that seamlessly 
integrate with the surrounding area, by illustrating examples of homes that are 
‘universal’ in their appeal and application. 
 
When designing new homes, it is now necessary to take account of three sets 
of requirements: 
 

• The first is Part M of the Building Regulations that has been extended 
to include all new homes 

• The second is Lifetime Homes’ standards, which many commissioning 
clients and local authorities now require. 

• The third is Wheelchair Standard Housing, which is now a requirement 
under London Plan Policy 3A.4. 

 
The design solutions for all three sets of requirements are broadly similar.  
The Lifetime Homes standards and Wheelchair Standard Housing are more 
comprehensive than Part M to the Building Regulations 2004, in their 
requirements to achieve an inclusive and adaptable living environment.   
 
As these additions are minor, the Council will require all housing developments to meet the 
minimum requirement of Lifetime Home standards.  In addition, the Council will require a 
proportion of all new housing to meet the Wheelchair Housing standards detailed in this 
document, as this ensures that suitable housing for long-term wheelchair users and those 
with high assistance needs is provided in suitable location across the borough.  
 
Harrow Council actively welcomes early discussions with architects, 
developers and builders, as accessible design is key to meeting planning 
application requirements and our ultimate goal to create an environment that 
is accessible to all.

17



Statutory Context 
 
 
 

18



What is a Lifetime Home? 
 
A Lifetime Homes is a home for life, which embraces 21st Century living and is 
achieved through good building design that meets 16 specified criteria.  For 
example, features such as level access and wider doors can allow parents 
using pushchairs to gain easy uninterrupted entry.  Likewise, people with 
temporary disabilities (eg: someone with a broken leg) could still enjoy 
independent mobility using a wheelchair or crutches.   
 
The costs involved in meeting the criteria are negligible. The initial minor 
expense will prevent costly adaptations later. Additionally, the expenses of 
care services required in old age will be greatly reduced. 
 
Features such as removable ceiling and wall panels concealed within the 
design of Lifetime Homes are often invaluable as we become older and 
perhaps less mobile. A person no longer needs to endure extended periods in 
hospital whilst their home is adapted. 
 
A carefully designed Lifetime Home does not normally take up more space 
and being well designed, has a greater sales potential. 
 
 
What is a Wheelchair Standard Home? 
 
Whilst a Lifetime Home goes some way towards being suitable for wheelchair 
users, it is not ideal.  A Wheelchair Standard Home promotes subtle but highly 
effective differences, to achieve a design that enables wheelchair users to 
maximise personal independence, without compromise. 
 
In basic terms a Wheelchair Standard Home is more spacious, allowing a 
wheelchair user to move around unhindered.  These properties should be 
designed for wheelchair users with more complex requirements and should be 
built already adapted for use, including pre-installed features such as low-
level kitchen facilities, infrared light switches, pre-installed handrails, etc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Car Parking 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Car parking should comply with Part M 
and should be: 
 

• adjacent to the home and be 
capable of enlargement to a 
width of 3.3m to allow a car door 
to be fully opened and a 
wheelchair pulled up alongside. 

 
• adjacent or kept to a minimum 

distance from the dwelling. 

Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 

• be 3.6m wide to include an 
integrated wheelchair user transfer 
area 

 
• provide a covered transfer area 

which is integrated and 
aesthetically compliments the 
home   

Car parking should comply with the 
standards of Lifetime Homes and in 
addition should: 

Diagram to be 
produced 

20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



2. Approaches and Entrance 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Approaches to dwellings should comply 
with Part M and also need to:- 
 
• be level or gently sloping; maximum 

gradient 1:20 
 
• have a covered, illuminated entrance 

and level access over the threshold 
with a maximum upstand of 15mm 

 
• have front doors with a clear opening 

width of 800mm 
 
• have pathways leading to the 

property not less than 900mm wide, 
non-slip and clearly defined 

 
• landscaped and planted carefully to 

avoid danger or injury to people with 
visual impairments. 

 
Where plot gradients are steeper than 
1:20, access to the dwelling must be 
provided by a ramp, designed in 
accordance with Part M to the Building 
Regulations. 

Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 

• have pathways leading to the 
property not less than 1200mm 
wide 

 
• provide storage space for 

charging outdoor mobility 
pavement vehicles 

 
• have a letterbox of a type and 

height suitable for use by a 
wheelchair user. 

Approaches to dwellings should 
comply with Lifetime Home Standards 
and should: 

Diagram to be 
produced 

Diagram to be 
produced 

22



3. Circulation Areas 
 
 

Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 
Circulation areas should comply with Part M 
 

 
 
All doorways and corridors should meet the 
following standards 
 
Doorway clear 
opening width (mm) 

Corridor/Passageway 
width (mm) 

800 900 

750 1200 (when approach 
is not head on) 

775 1050 (when approach 
is not head on) 

 
 Widths of doorways and hallways to be 
dependent upon position in relation to each 
other to allow wheelchair access. 

A removable ceiling hatch should be 
positioned to allow for future installation 
of a ‘through the floor’ type wheelchair 
lift, eg: from a downstairs hallway to an 
upstairs landing.   
 

Lifts should be positioned to allow convenient 
use without disturbance/disruption to the 
commonly used rooms in the home.  In 
addition they should allow for the future 
installation of a stair lift.   

Doorways and corridors should be over and
above the standards of Lifetime Homes and
 

• all circulation areas in corridors and
halls of dwellings to be 1200mm 
minimum width with a 1500mm 
turning circles at corridor junctions

 
• internal doors to open more than 90

to ensure handles do not project int
opening width 

 
• Leading edge of doors should be 

550mm from an adjacent wall. 

Diagram to be 
produced 

Within the home 

23



Communal areas  

3. Circulation Areas (Cont’d)  
 
  

Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 
 
 
A wheelchair accessible passenger lift of 
1100 x 1400mm should be provided.   
 
Communal stairs should be designed in 
accordance with the standards set out in 
BS 8300.  There should be 900mm clear 
distance between stair wall and the edge of 
the opposite handrail/banister, to allow for 
installation of a stair or platform lift. 

 
• Turning space for 

wheelchairs to be provided, 
ie 1400mm by 1700mm in 
the kitchen, dinning and 
living room areas and 
sufficient circulation space 
elsewhere. 

Turning Circles

24



Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 

A WC must be provided on the 
entrance level, fitted with a recessed 
floor gully, to allow future installation of
a shower. In addition the area must be 
suitably designed and sealed to allow 
the whole area to be used as a shower 
room. 
 
Walls in bathrooms and WC’s should 
be capable of adaptations where 
significant load may be applied, eg: 
handrails. 
 
There should be a minimum of 
1100mm in front of the WC, between 
the door and the toilet bowl and 
700mm between the side wall and WC, 
to allow side transfer, or between items 
of furniture, eg: between bath and 
toilet. 
 
Washbasins should also be 
accessible. 
 
Where a bath is fitted, it must, in 
addition, provide floor drainage so that 
the bath can be replaced if required in 
future. 
 
Provision for a direct route for a ceiling 
rack hoist from a main bedroom to a 
bathroom to be installed at a later date.
 

WC’s, Showers and Bathrooms 

• Bathrooms are to be of minimum 
internal dimensions 2400 x 
2400mm 

 
• Bathroom fixture and fittings 

centrally positioned to allow 
access from either side. 

 
• Handwash basin to be sited so that 

it can be used whilst seated on the 
WC. 

 
• Provision of more than one toilet 

facility per home. 

25



Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 

Living rooms should be at entrance level. 
In dwellings of two or more storeys a space 
should: 
 

• be available for convenient temporary 
bed space 

 
• have adequate turning space, ie 

1500mm diameter. 

Living Rooms 

Kitchens 

 Kitchens are to have a minimum 
1400mm x 1400mm clear floor 
space between fixed units?????
 
Storage cupboard or area for 
disability related equipment 
 

Turning circle 

Turning circle 

26



 

Lifetime Home Wheelchair Standard Home 

Fixtures and Fittings 

Easy to operate/open living room windows with 
glass at a height of 800mm or lower 
 
Switches, sockets, ventilation and service 
controls between 450mm and 1200mm from the 
floor 
 
Windows should be located so that wheelchair 
users are able to open/close at least one 
window in every room, eg: maximum reaching 
point of 1.2m. 
 
The living room glazing should start at a height 
of 800mm. 

27



CASE STUDY EXAMPLE 
 
The following case study example is intended to illustrate how some of the 
accessible homes requirements can be seamlessly integrated into the design 
of different types of residential developments.   
 

1. Stanmore Park - suburban housing scheme example 
2. Peterborough Road – infill urban high density example 
3. Ad Astra – single house example. 

 
 
The example chosen illustrate that when inclusive design is considered at an 
early stage in the development process, well design accessible developments 
are the result.  As shown in this case study example, the requirements of 
inclusive design can be seamlessly integrated into existing development by 
applying considered design interventions. 

28



CASE STUDY EXAMPLE ONE 
 

Stanmore Park 

29



CASE STUDY EXAMPLE TWO 
 

Peterborough Road 

30



CASE STUDY EXAMPLE THREE 
 

Ad Astra 
 
 

31



DESIGN SOLUTIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
End of terrace wheelchair standard homes 
Integrated car ports for wheelchair standard homes 
Corner front doors addressing street for wheelchair standard homes 
Two-storey wheelchair standard homes only

32



CONCLUSIONS 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

MOBILITY & WHEELCHAIR HOUSING 
Supplementary Planning Document 

 
 

 

SUSTAINABILITY 
APPRAISAL SCOPING REPORT 

 
(DRAFT) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
August 2005  

 
 

35



 2

Contents 
How to Comment on the Report . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3 

1.Sustainability Appraisal Background and Purpose – Introduction  . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . 4 
 
1.1The Main Principles of the Local Development Framework & Legislative Background . . .4  
 
2. Policy Context . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .4-6 
 
3. Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) & Sustainability Appraisal (SA). . . . . .  . . . .  7  
 
4. Reason for the Production of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD and Plan Options. .7-8 

5. The Purposes the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD will serve. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . .  8 
 
6. Sustainability Appraisal Methodology . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8-12 
 
6.4 The SA Process stages followed in assessing the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD . .12 
 
7. Baseline Collection  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13-14 
 
8. The objectives of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 
 
9. Existing Saved Policy Appraisal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .16 
 
10.  Next Steps . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .20 
 
FIGURES 
FIGURE 1: Flow Diagram to Describe the SA Process Stage by Stage. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 
 
FIGURE 2: Sustainability Appraisal Process. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11-12 
 
FIGURE 3: Population of Harrow with Limiting Long Term Illness (LLTI) or Disability (2001 
Census). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
 
FIGURE 4: The overarching SEA/SA Objectives contained in the Overarching SA Scoping 
Report of the LDF. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
 
FIGURE 5: Policy H18 policy appraisal chart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . 17 
 
FIGURE 6: Compatibility Matrix comparing the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD objectives 
against the Overarching SEA/SA Objectives of the LDF. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .18 
 
FIGURE 7: Highlights the areas of uncertainty and incompatibility between the implementation 
of objectives as identified in the matrix - (Figure 6). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 
 
APPENDICES 
APPENDIX 1: Example of a baseline data collection sheet for one scheme. Details Lifetime 
Homes and Wheelchair Accessible Housing assessment criteria 
 
APPENDIX 2: Table to tests the proposed actions of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD 
against the SEA criteria to assess the likely impact of these actions on the environment   

36



 3

How to Comment on the Report 
 
Comments relating to this Sustainability Appraisal [SA] or the ‘Mobility & Wheelchair Housing’, 
Supplementary Planning Document [SPD] should be sent to:  
 
 

Ali Kashmiri 
Access Officer 

Harrow Council (London) 
Planning Department 

PO Box 37 
Civic Centre 
Station Road 

Harrow     HA1 2UY 
 
 
Alternatively, comments can be sent by fax on 020 8424 1551.   
 
The Council can accept comments by e-mail relating to this consultation.   Please contact Ali 
Kashmiri on 020 8426 0811 or ali.kashmiri@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Copies of both reports are also available via the planning pages on the Council’s website at 
www.harrow.gov.uk 
  
Comments from this informal consultation must be received by 4.30 pm on ? 2005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



 4

Sustainability Appraisal Background and Purpose 
 
1. Introduction 
1.1 The Main Principles of the Local Development Framework and Legislative 
Background 
The Local Development Scheme (LDS), brought into effect in June 2005, outlines the 
programme for preparing and reviewing Local Development Documents. The LDS includes the 
timetable for the production of this Mobility & Wheelchair Housing Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD). SPDs provide additional guidance expanding upon policies in the Harrow 
Unitary Development Plan (HUDP). 

2. Policy Context 
2.1The Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD is supplementary to the Harrow Unitary 
Development Plan [HUDP] and will form part of the Local Development Framework [LDF].  The 
SPD amplifies policy H18 which reads as follows:  
 
Accessible Homes 
H18 THE COUNCIL WILL ENCOURAGE NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, INCLUDING 

CHANGES OF USE AND CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS INTO FLATS, TO BE 
ACCESSIBLE TO ALL. IN LARGER RESIDENTIAL SCHEMES, THE COUNCIL WILL 
SEEK TO ENSURE THAT A PROPORTION OF THESE ARE BUILT AS LIFETIME 
HOMES OR CAPABLE OF ADAPTATION TO WHEELCHAIR HOUSING. ALL 
WHEELCHAIR HOUSING, PROVIDED AS PART OF A NEW RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT, SHOULD BE IN A SUITABLE LOCATION IN ORDER TO MEET THE 
NEEDS OF THE OCCUPANTS. 

 
2.2 In line with London plan policies and HUDP Policy H18, the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing 
SPD will provide developers with guidance in relation to the design of Wheelchair Standard 
Housing, and clear guidance of where it will be sought.  
 
2.3 The London Plan targets of 100% Lifetime Homes, 10% wheelchair-accessible homes, and 
its general requirements for access for all, are fundamental to providing the right homes in the 
right place. The London Plan also acknowledges that successful high density housing will not 
be possible without the highest standards of urban design. For the purpose of this SA, the term 
‘Lifetime’ will be used instead of the word ‘mobility’. It is the Council’s intention to change the 
title of this SPD to ‘Accessible Homes SPD’ in the Annual Monitoring Statement (AMS) to be 
produced at the end of the year. This will more clearly link to the title of the policy and reflect its 
main intentions. The SPD addresses both the delivery of Lifetime and Wheelchair Standard 
housing, and ensuring good design in the delivery of such housing, and housing in general. 
 
2.4 The SPD comprises of two types of housing unit - Lifetime homes and Wheelchair standard 
homes.  A Lifetime home is a home for life and is designed with 16 specified criteria in mind 
(see below), for example, features such as level access, wider doors and sufficient internal 
turning space.  
 
Criteria: Lifetime Homes Standard Housing 

1) Car Parking - adjacent, capable width > 3.3m  

2) Car parking - space between car park and home level

3) Entrance - approaches level or gently sloping  

4) Entrance - illuminated, level & covered  

38



 5

5) Lifts - wheelchair accessible   

6) Width - position of doors and halls  

7) Internal turning space - 1500mm diameter  

8) Sitting room - at entrance level  

9) Bedroom - ground floor   

10) Downstairs W.C - wheelchair accessible & shower 

11) W.C. Walls - adaptable i.e. handrails  

12) Future Stair lift Provision  

13) Provision for ceiling tract hoist  

14) W.C & Bathroom - side approach  

15) Windows - 800mm or lower  

16) Switches - 450mm to 1200mm  
 
A wheelchair standard home is a home that is specifically designed with wheelchair users in 
mind. The criteria for Wheelchair standard homes are additional to the above listed Lifetime 
homes standards and promote subtle but highly effective differences that cater for a wheelchair 
user - for example, features such as covered car parking areas, low-level kitchen units and 
storage space. The Wheelchair standard homes criteria are as follows: 
 
Criteria: Wheelchair Standard Homes 

1) Car parking - covered   

2) Storage space - outdoor mobility vehicles

3) Letter Box - type and height suitability 

4) Circulation areas - 1200mm minimum 

5) Internal doors - to open > 90 degrees 

6) Leading Edge - 550mm from adjacent wall

7) Bathroom - 2400mm x 2400mm  

8) Kitchen - 1400mm x 1400mm  

9) Storage cupboard - disabled equipment 
 
2.5 Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair housing are two different types of housing which should 
generally form part of the fabric of mainstream housing. Currently such housing is normally 
secured through negotiations with developers in Harrow. Older people and people with physical 
disabilities require housing which is designed to help them retain maximum independence. 
There is a need for housing which is not specifically designed for disabled people but adaptable 
and designed to be adjustable in accordance to the changing physical and medical 
circumstances. This places people who become disabled in a favourable position in as much as 
they do not have to move house. Consequently, the Council wishes to amplify on the 
implementation of policy H18 and further emphasise the support for Lifetime housing because 
Lifetime homes substantially reduce the cost of later adaptation, and reduce the costs of 
personal care.  

39



 6

 
2.6 Baseline data relating to local social, economic and environmental issues was collected as a 
way of devising a structure for the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD and to determine its 
content or scope in line with relevant government guidance, plans and programmes that were 
reviewed. The most important task in carrying out a SA of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing 
SPD was to establish the likely significant effect of the content of the Mobility & Wheelchair 
Housing SPD against social, economic and environmental factors, in accordance with the 
requirements of the SEA Directive and the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  
 
2.7 A review of European, national, regional and local policy and strategy plans was undertaken 
to identify appropriate social, environmental and economic objectives for the Mobility & 
Wheelchair Housing SPD.  
 
Some of the most relevant documents reviewed for the production of the Mobility & Wheelchair 
Housing SPD and this SA Report are listed below: 
 

1. The Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive: Guidance for Planning Authorities. 
ODPM, London, October 2003 

 
2. Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development 

Frameworks: Consultation Paper, ODPM, September 2004  
 

3. Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development 
Frameworks: Interim Advise Note on Frequently Asked Questions, ODPM, London, April 
2005 

 
4. Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development  

 
5. Planning Policy Guidance 3: Housing 
 
6. The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) 
 
7. Planning and Access for Disabled People: A Good Practice Guide from the Office of the 

Deputy Prime Minister 
 
8. Part M to the Building Regulations: May 2004 

 
9. British Standard 8300; 2001- Code of Practice 
 
10. Lifetime Home Standards, Joseph Rowntree Foundation 

 
11. Wheelchair Housing Design Guide, 1997, BRE Publications 
 
12. Scheme Development Standards, 2003, Fifth Edition 

 
13. The London Plan (Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London), Mayor of London, 

February 2004.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



 7

3. Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) & Sustainability Appraisal 
(SA) 
3.1 All DPDs and SPDs will need to undergo Sustainability Appraisal (SA) as required under 
section 5 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. SA is a systematic process 
carried out during plan production; its purpose is to assess the extent to which emerging 
policies, proposals and supplementary information will help to achieve relevant environmental, 
social and economic objectives, i.e. sustainable development. The Government’s SA process 
has incorporated within the Draft SA guidance1 the ‘Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Directive’ (SEA) requirements for plans and programmes that are likely to have a significant 
effect upon the environment under The European Directive 2001/42/EC.  
 
4. Reason for the Production of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD and 
Plan Options 
4.1 There are many misconceptions that surround housing provided to meet the needs of 
people with disabilities.  Developers typically perceive Lifetime homes and Wheelchair Standard 
housing as properties that will require extra space, reduce housing density, and as a specialism 
separate from the needs of mainstream society.  With only 1% of the total new housing stock 
currently being accessible and approximately 18% of existing dwellings requiring adaptations 
over the next 30 years, the Council is keen to ensure that all new housing meets the minimum 
standard for Lifetime Homes.    
 
4.2 A key objective of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD is to demonstrate the links 
between the Council's planning process, government planning policy and nationally recognised 
housing standards.  The Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD supports the principles of 
sustainable design, by actively discouraging design that potentially involves future costly and 
disruptive adaptations.  Furthermore, the SPD actively demonstrates that homes which are 
ostensibly mainstream in design, can also be accessible to wheelchair users.  The SPD will 
introduce design trends which encourage improved social inclusion of disabled people through 
accessible housing that is integrated across the whole borough.  
 
4.3 The Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD aims to ensure: 
• that new residential developments, including conversions and extensions, are of good 
quality in order to maintain and enhance the residential component and character of the 
Borough. More importantly it aims to provide and retain a range of housing types and sizes, of 
a high standard and design, to meet the varied physical and economic needs of the Borough’s 
residents. 
 
• that Wheelchair Housing units should generally be integrated with mainstream housing. This 
is to ensure that such housing types are integrated and inclusive, thereby also reducing the 
chances of break-ins to housing which is known to belong to disabled people. Hence the SPD 
will give extra guidance on how to avoid problems associated with isolation 
 
4.4 Options: 
Following the introduction of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the 
publication of a variety of detailed accessible housing documents, a new comprehensive SPD 
was required. This SPD will be produced under the provisions of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004, and Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair Standard Housing regulations. 
 

                                            
1 Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development Frameworks: 
Consultation Paper, ODPM, September 2004  
 

41



 8

4.5 It was recommended by the HUDP Planning Inspector that references to any standards 
within policy H18 ought to be placed in the policy’s reasoned justification. To enhance the 
existing policy it was thought that a SPD would be an ideal tool to implementing the existing 
Accessible Homes Policy H18. Developing the document as an SPD for the LDF gives it more 
weight and duration under the new planning system as opposed to developing an SPG to the 
HUDP. This will ensure that the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD can be implemented 
beyond the three year period of the initial Local Development Scheme (LDS), in which any 
HUDP policies and SPGs can be saved.  
 
4.6 Due to the fact that the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD expands upon an existing 
saved policy in the HUDP and does not introduce new options or policies, the guidance has 
been brought out as a draft SPD as opposed to new policy which would have required the 
document to be produced as a Development Plan Document (DPD). It was considered a 
sensible option to progress the document as a SPD since part of its production had already 
commenced prior to the LDF system coming into force.  

5. The Purposes the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD will serve 
5.1The purpose of the SPD is to illustrate examples of well-designed accessible homes in the 
Borough and a range of good design solutions to these. The SPD will be designed to highlight 
the most important principles in designing accessible homes and is particularly aimed at 
developers and builders. The document seeks to illustrate the best ways to achieve well-
designed accessible homes, that seamlessly integrate with the surrounding area, using a range 
of property types. The SPD will provide practical guidance to developers and will demonstrate 
that with careful planning, Lifetime Home Standards can be introduced without compromising 
the number of habitable rooms provided otherwise. 
 
6. Sustainability Appraisal Methodology  
6.1 The approach adopted to undertake the SA was based on the process set out in the Draft 
Government Guidance on SA of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development 
Frameworks (September 2004). Figure 1 below demonstrates the stage by stage flow of the SA 
process and Figure 2 outlines the requirements and tasks to be undertaken within each stage of 
the SA process.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 9

FIGURE 1: Flow Diagram to Describe the SA Process Stage by Stage: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sustainability Framework  
 
 
6.2 At each stage of DPD or SPD production, a sustainability appraisal will be carried out to 
inform the consultation process, assist in refining policies and proposals and support submitted 
DPDs during the examination stage. There are five stages within the SA process and currently 
this SA report has addressed the tasks of stage A (Refer to figure 1 above- pale yellow box) in 
becoming a scoping report for the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD. It also addresses the 
options appraisal requirements of stage B, which have been clarified in paragraph 4.3. The SA 
process will develop alongside the progression of the SPD. It should be recognised that informal 
consideration of sustainable development requirements has been given throughout the formulation 
of this SA, as have all aims included in the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD. Figure 2 (pages 
11-12) also demonstrates the tasks involved in the SA process and how these link with the 
production of DPDs and SPDs.  
 
6.3 The Council is producing an Overarching SA Report of the LDF, which is nearing 
completion. It identifies appropriate overarching high-level objectives for appraising policies 
against, and examines ‘baseline’ conditions in the Borough as required by stage A of the SA 
process. These overarching objectives have been used in this SA Scoping report assessment of 
the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD (refer to figure 4 and pages 15-19). This SA report is 
referred to as the SA Scoping Report in accordance with the ODPM draft SA guidance 
(September 2004) and has been designed to provide a foundation for the range of DPDs and 
SPDs that the Council intends to produce, but will if necessary be updated during the early 
stages of DPD or SPD production to ensure that the information and analysis it contains remain 

Stage A: Setting the context, 
establishing the baseline, and 

objectives deciding on the 
scope of the DPD/SPD  

Stage B: Developing & 
Appraising/Refining Issues 
and Options 

Stage C: Appraising the 
effects of the DPD/SPD and 
Draft Final Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

Stage D: Consulting on the  
DPD/SPD and Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

Stage E: Monitoring the 
implementation of the 
DPD/SPD 

Final SA Report 

Initial SA Report 

Scoping Report 

43



 10

relevant. It will also be updated should any significant changes occur to the final ODPM SA 
guidance which is due to be published soon. 

44



 11

FIGURE 2: Sustainability Appraisal Process 
Generic SA Stages 
for Plan making  
 

SA process 
linkages to the 
preparation of 
DPDs and SPDs 

Stages and Tasks 

Stage A: Gathering 
information to 
produce an SA 
Scoping Report 
 
 
 
 

Prepared alongside 
the preparation of 
the evidence base 
for the relevant 
DPDs and SPDs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A1- Identifying other relevant plans, 
programmes & sustainability objectives relevant 
to the LDF objectives to document how the plan 
is affected by outside factors and suggest ideas 
for how any constraints can be addressed. 
A2- Collecting relevant economic, social and 
environmental baseline information to provide an 
evidence base for sustainability issues, effects 
prediction and monitoring. 
A3- Identifying sustainability Issues to help focus 
the SA and streamline the subsequent stages, 
including baseline information analysis, setting 
of the SA Framework, prediction of effects and 
monitoring. 
A4- Developing the SA Framework to provide a 
means by which the sustainability of the plan 
can be appraised. 
A5- Testing the DPD/SPD objectives against the 
SA Framework - to ensure that the overall 
objectives of the plan are in accordance with 
sustainability principles and provide a suitable 
framework for developing options. 
A6- Consulting on the scope of the SA-  
The ‘authorities’ identified by the UK 
Government in the SEA Directive as being likely 
to be concerned by the environmental effects of 
implementing DPDs/SPDs have to be consulted  
to ensure the SA covers the sustainability 
issues.  
The four consultation authorities with 
environmental responsibilities as set out in 
Regulation 9 as part of the SEA determination 
process are: 
1. The Environment Agency; 
2. The Countryside Agency; 
3. English Nature; and 
4. English Heritage. 
 

Stage B: 
Identify issues and 
options and 
prepare for 
consultation 
 
 
 
 

Prepared outside 
the preparation of 
issues and options. 

B1- Appraising issues and 
Options- To assist in the development and 
refinement of the options, by identifying potential 
sustainability effects of options for achieving the 
DPD/SPD objectives. 
B2- Consulting on the SA of emerging options of 
the DPD/SPD- To consult with the public and 
statutory bodies on the SA of emerging options 
to ensure the SA covers all the reasonable 
options and key sustainability issues. 

45



 12

Stage C-Appraising 
the effects of the 
draft DPD/SPD and 
SA report 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared alongside 
the preparation of 
the preferred 
options. 
Consultation on 
both DPD/SPD and 
SA report  will take 
place at the same  
time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C1- Predicting the effects of the plan, including 
plan options- to predict the significant effects of 
the DPD/SPD and the DPD/SPD options. 
C2- Assessing the effects of the DPD/SPD- to 
assess the significance of the predicted effects 
of the DPD/SPD and its options and assist in the 
refinement of the DPD/SPD.  
C3- Propose measures to maximize beneficial 
effects and mitigate adverse effects. 
C4-Developing proposals for monitoring-  
To detail the means by which the sustainability 
performance of the plan can be assessed. 
C5- Preparing the SA Report- to provide a 
detailed account of the SA process, including 
the findings of the appraisal and how it 
influenced the development of the DPD/SPD, in 
a format suitable for public consultation and 
decision-makers. 

Stage D- 
Consultation on the 
DPD/SPD and 
Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

Prepared alongside 
the preparation of 
the submission of 
DPD/SPD. 
Consultation on 
both will take place 
at the same time.  
 

D1- Consulting on the SA Report alongside the 
DPD/SPD- To provide the public and statutory 
bodies with an effective opportunity to express 
their opinions on the SA Report and to use it as 
a reference point in commenting on the plan. 
D2 - appraising significant changes- To ensure 
that any significant changes to the plan are 
assessed for their sustainability implications and 
influence the revision of the DPD/SPD. 
D3 - Decision making and 
providing information- to provide information on 
how the SA Report and consultees’ opinions 
were taken into account in preparing the 
DPD/SPD. Submit DPD/SPD and SA Report to 
the Secretary of State. 

Stage E-  
Monitoring the 
Implementation of 
the DPD/SPD 
 
 
 
 

The sustainability of 
the Core Strategy 
DPD / SPD Policies 
will be assessed as 
part of the Annual 
Monitoring Report. 
 

E1- Monitoring the significant effects of the plan- 
To measure the sustainability performance of 
the plan in order to determine whether its effects 
are as anticipated, and thereby inform future 
revisions. 
E2 - Responding to adverse effects- to ensure 
that the adverse effects can be identified and 
appropriate responses/actions developed. 

 
 
6.4 Stages followed in assessing the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD 
This draft Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SA Scoping report has addressed stages A1- A5 and 
stage B2 of the SA process as outlined in Figure 2 above. There is further work to be 
incorporated into this working draft SA Scoping report on baseline data relating to the design 
element of the analysis. This draft SA report accompanying the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing 
SPD will be referred to the four consultation authorities with environmental responsibilities as 
stated in stage A6 of the SA process. See Figure 2 above. 
 
                                            
2 Under transitional arrangements, and due to the SPD not addressing policy options, it is generally accepted that 
the most expedient course of action should combine stages A and B within this SA Scoping report consultation. 

46



 13

7. Baseline Collection 
7.1 The population of the UK is predicted to grow by 7% over the next 30 years, however, the 
number of disabled people in the UK is expected to rise by 40% according to the Office for 
National Statistics. 31,000 people currently have a long-term illness or a disability. 
 
7.2 From data analysis of the 2001 census, by year 2020 it is estimated that half of Harrow’s 
adult population will be aged over 50, with people over 80 being the most rapidly growing 
sector. With an ever-increasing aging population and the associated likelihood of higher 
numbers of people with restricted mobility, there is urgent need for design methods based on 
better understanding of age and disability related factors.  The Council must therefore adopt 
guidance that sets clear parameters for the design of housing developments to be of Lifetime 
and Wheelchair Standards, as decisions taken now will affect Harrow in the decades beyond 
2020.    
 
FIGURE 3: Population of Harrow with Limiting Long Term Illness (LLTI) or 
Disability (2001 Census) 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 This data has informed the need for the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD as the potential 
number of people who would benefit from the provision of lifetime and wheelchair housing is 
substantial. This observation results from both the number of older and disabled people living in 
Harrow and because Harrow has a growing aging population.  The SPD will work to influence 
new housing developments to be designed in a way which will reduce the need for adaptations 
in the future since people mostly prefer to remain in their homes.  
 
7.4 Appendix 1 demonstrates a monitoring sheet used to assess the standards of one housing 
scheme currently reviewed. It details the criteria for both Lifetime homes and Wheelchair 
standard homes.  
 
7.5 In analysing the implementation of Policy H18 a number of recent schemes were identified 
for possible examination. It was decided not to include any housing scheme involving RSLs as 
these would have been required to be built to acceptable standards by the Housing Corporation. 
It was agreed also to analyse new schemes rather than adaptations. Baseline data has been 
collected from larger residential schemes to determine whether or not lifetime homes and 
wheelchair accessible homes have been secured in Harrow.  For the purposes of the data 

Age Range Population 
of Harrow 

People with 
LLTI or 

Disability 

People likely to 
benefit from 

Inclusive Design 
0-15 years of age 41678 1510 3.62 % 

Females16-59 
Males 16-64 130207 13473 10.35 % 

Females 60+ 
Males 65+ 34839 17200 49.37 % 

75+ 14606 8673 59.38 % 

All people 206715 30760 14.88 % 

47



 14

collection larger residential schemes are housing schemes of 15 units or above, granted 
planning permission in Harrow. 
 
7.6 After searching the planning register for this type of planning application seven applications 
complied with the parameters outlined above. The details of the seven applications were 
examined against the 16 criteria for Lifetime homes and the 9 criteria for Wheelchair standard 
homes. Six out of the seven schemes short-listed did not propose any Lifetime home standard 
housing.  Whilst all schemes attempted to provide some percentage of Wheelchair standard 
housing, none of the units complied with the majority of the stipulated criteria. Hence the need 
for clearer guidance on the implementation of the policy. 
 
8. The objectives of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD are to: 

1. To encourage improved social inclusion for disabled people through accessible housing 
that is integrated across the borough in its design, location and construction. 

2. To promote housing that eliminates the need for potential costly future adaptations 
3. To ensure that all new residential property in the borough is designed to be flexible, easy 

to use and therefore accessible to all occupiers 
 
8.1 These Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD sustainability objectives have been assessed 
against environmental factors as required by Annex 1 Article 5(1) of the SEA Directive, to 
identify the likely significant effects of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD on these 
environmental factors.  The environmental factors detailed in the SEA Directive Annex 1 Article 
5(1) are as follows: biodiversity, population, human health, fauna, flora, soil, water, air, climatic 
factors, material assets, cultural heritage including architectural and archaeological heritage, 
landscape and the interrelationship between the above factors. (See Appendix 2).  
 
8.2 Appendix 2 details the three sustainability objectives which reflect the context of the Mobility 
& Wheelchair Housing SPD and the sustainability dimensions these objectives address i.e. 
social, economic and/or environmental. It also demonstrates the proposed actions of the 
Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD and the likely impact of these actions on the environmental 
factors listed above in implementing the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD, and whether they 
are likely to be short, medium or long-term effects. A few indicators have also been devised to 
monitor the implementation of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD objectives, however 
further work is required to this working draft in formulating indicators for monitoring purposes.  
 
8.3 These Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD objectives have also been assessed against the 
overarching SA objectives contained in the Overarching SA Scoping Report of the LDF that the 
Council is nearing completion (as mentioned earlier in paragraph 6.3, also see below, figure 4). 
This is to ensure that the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD objectives are consistent with the 
overall objectives of the Council’s vision proposed for the LDF, and also to test that the SPD 
objectives meet economic, environmental and social factors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



 15

FIGURE 4: The overarching SEA/SA Objectives contained in the 
Overarching SA Scoping Report of the LDF 
 

SEA/SA 
Objective 
No. 

Overarching SEA/SA Objective Econ Soc Env 

1 To make the most efficient use of land by developing on 
redundant and vacant brownfield sites and buildings, and to 
ensure that land is remediated as appropriate      

   
 

2 To protect the quality, quantity and accessibility of open spaces in 
the Borough  

   
 

3 To conserve and enhance the ecosystems/habitats, species and 
species diversity in the Borough   

   
 

4 To restrict development which can negatively affect the 
landscape and streetscape and design of historic, archaeological 
sites (listed buildings and conservation areas) or culturally 
important features.     

   
 

5 Reduce road congestion and traffic pollution levels by improving 
travel choice, reducing the need for travel by car, and shortening 
the length and duration of journeys  

 
 

 
 

 
 

6 To reduce air pollution and ensure air quality continues to 
improve through addressing the cause of climate change through 
reducing emissions of greenhouse gases   

  
 

 
 

7 To reduce pollution of land (soil) and water     

8 To promote development proposals and/ or policies which 
consider the implementation of renewable/sustainable energy 
technologies, which exploit the use of wind, solar and biomass 
energy 

 
 

  
 

9 Incorporate waste strategies into new developments and promote 
further the waste hierarchy of minimisation, reuse, recycling and 
composting  

   
 

 
10 To facilitate the development of a dynamic and diverse economic 

sector which attracts growth, enables partnership working and 
training and skills development opportunities 

 
 

 
 

 

11 To ensure all groups have access to decent, appropriate and 
affordable housing that meets the needs of Harrow’s residents. 

  
 

 
 

12 To reduce social exclusion by improving accessibility to jobs, 
health, education, shops, leisure, cultural and community facilities 
to everyone     

 
 

 
 

 

13 To improve the health and wellbeing of Harrow residents and 
reduce inequalities in health 

 
 

 
 

 
 

14 To improve the competitiveness, vitality, viability and adaptability 
of Harrow town centre        

 
 

 
 

 

15 To reduce crime and the fear of crime 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

49



 16

8.4 The SEA/SA overarching objectives are designed to provide a balance between the three 
sustainability dimensions of sustainable development, the environment, the economy and 
society. The ticks ( ) demonstrate which dimensions of sustainability are addressed for each 
overarching objective.  
 
9. Existing saved Policy Appraisal 
It is a requirement that when appraising an SPD, the unitary development plan policies being 
supplemented should themselves be appraised if this has not previously taken place.3 As 
mentioned in paragraph 2.1, Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD supplements policy H18 of the 
HUDP. The intention of the SPD is to expand on the saved Policy H18, improve its application 
and avoid any negative impacts. Figure 5 below, demonstrates the appraisal of policy H18 
against the overarching SEA/SA objectives of the LDF.  

                                            
 
3 Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development Frameworks: Interim Advise Note 
on Frequently Asked Questions, ODPM, London, April 2005 

50



 17

 
FIGURE 5: Policy H18 policy appraisal chart 
 
  Overarching SEA/SA objectives by Number 
Policy 
H18 - 
HUDP 
saved 
policy 

Short, 
medium 
and 
long 
term 
impacts 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

Short  
 

          + + +  + 

Medium 
 

   -      + ++ ++ ++  + 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Long    
 

 -      + ++ ++ ++  + 

Key: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Assessment of Policy H18:  
H18 in relation to SEA/SA objective 4 has been shown in the table to be potentially negative in 
its implementation impact. There are some areas of potential conflict which will always remain, 
for example, certain listed buildings and housing which may require changes to be accessible to 
all and afford equal opportunities to all, may not be adaptable to accommodate appropriate 
access arrangements as this could compromise the architectural and historic value of the 
building. It should be noted, however that where adaptations are permissible, potential likely 
negative impacts can be avoided through the implementation of the Mobility & Wheelchair 
Housing SPD. 
 
In relation to SEA/SA objective 15, Disabled people often feel vulnerable to crime, especially if 
their house conspicuously displays the fact that they are disabled or that disabled people live 
there. Good design through the application of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD should 
integrate disabled facilities into the overall design and thereby reduce the fear of crime. 
 
The possible incompatibilities identified between the saved Policy H18 and the Overarching 
SEA/SA objectives should be mitigated through the application of the Mobility & Wheelchair 
Housing SPD. Hence there is a lack of incompatibilities between the SPD objectives and the 
Overarching SEA/SA objectives (see figure 6 below). 

++ Strong impact 

 + Moderate impact 

- Negative impact 

 No impact 

51



 
18

FI
G

U
R

E 
6:

 C
om

pa
tib

ili
ty

 M
at

rix
 c

om
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 &
 W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

PD
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 
O

ve
ra

rc
hi

ng
 S

EA
/S

A
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 o
f t

he
 L

D
F 

   
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
15

 

1    

+ 
+ 

 
+ 

+/
- 

 
 

 
 

 
+ 

+ 
 

 
 

 2
    

+ 
 

 
+ 

 
 

 
+ 

+ 
 

+ 
 

 
 

 

 3
   

 

 
 

 
+ 

+/
- 

 
 

 
 

 
+ 

 
 

 
 

   G
en

er
al

ly
 th

e 
dr

af
t M

ob
ilit

y 
& 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
PD

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 v
er

y 
w

el
l a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 th
ei

r 
co

m
pa

tib
ilit

y,
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f e
ffe

ct
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

er
e 

ve
ry

 p
os

iti
ve

. T
he

re
 a

re
 tw

o 
in

st
an

ce
s 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

om
pa

tib
le

 a
nd

 
in

co
m

pa
tib

le
 li

nk
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

LD
F 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 M

ob
ilit

y 
& 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
PD

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 m

at
rix

 
ab

ov
e 

(fi
gu

re
 6

). 
It 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

at
 th

es
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
nc

om
pa

tib
ilit

ie
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
do

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
si

ta
te

 th
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

& 
W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

PD
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 to

 b
e 

re
-w

rit
te

n 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 li

ke
ly

 im
pa

ct
 o

r e
ffe

ct
 o

f t
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

n 
on

e 
an

ot
he

r i
s 

de
pe

nd
en

t o
n 

th
e 

w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 a
re

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
  

 M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 h

as
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
& 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
PD

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 p

ot
en

tia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

or
 a

t 
le

as
t r

eq
ui

re
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

is
su

e 
at

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

st
ag

e.
 H

ig
h 

vi
su

al
 a

m
en

ity
 o

f n
ew

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
w

ill 
be

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

in
-k

ee
pi

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l h

er
ita

ge
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
di

st
in

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
la

yo
ut

 w
ill 

be
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y.

  

+ 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 

  
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 h
av

e 
no

 li
nk

 

? 
U

nc
er

ta
in

 li
nk

 

+/
-

Po
te

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 a
nd

 
in

co
m

pa
tib

le
 

- 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 in
co

m
pa

tib
le

 

O
VE

R
A

R
C

H
IN

G
 S

EA
/S

A
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

LD
F 

(b
y 

nu
m

be
r)

 

S P D
 

 O B J E C T I V E S 

52



 
19

FI
G

U
R

E 
7:

 H
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 a
nd

 in
co

m
pa

tib
ili

ty
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
m

at
rix

 a
bo

ve
 (F

ig
ur

e 
6)

  
 SP

D
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

C
om

pa
tib

ili
ty

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 w
ith

 
ov

er
ar

ch
in

g 
SA

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

 

1)
To

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

oc
ia

l i
nc

lu
si

on
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
th

at
 i

s 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

in
 i

ts
 

de
si

gn
, l

oc
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 
 

an
d 

 3)
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ne
w

 r
es

id
en

tia
l p

ro
pe

rty
 

in
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 i

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
be

 f
le

xi
bl

e,
 

ea
sy

 t
o 

us
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 t
o 

al
l 

oc
cu

pi
er

s 
  

5)
 R

ed
uc

e 
ro

ad
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
tra

ffi
c 

po
llu

tio
n 

le
ve

ls
 b

y 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

tra
ve

l c
ho

ic
e,

 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r t
ra

ve
l b

y 
ca

r, 
an

d 
sh

or
te

ni
ng

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 a

nd
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 

N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
vi

a 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 tr

af
fic

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

Al
so

 
de

si
gn

 
la

yo
ut

s 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
us

e 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 t
o 

th
e 

ca
r 

m
ay

 
ha

ve
 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

, 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

ui
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 f

or
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 f
or

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

. 

    

53



 20

10.Next Steps 
10.1 The next stages in the SA process will be completed alongside the development of 
the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD and responses received to this SA Scoping 
Report will taken into consideration and indicators to monitor the SPD objectives will be 
devised to enable effective monitoring of the Mobility & Wheelchair Housing SPD in its 
implementation.  
 
10.2 Access Statements illustrate a planning applicants commitment to good design 
principles, ensuring that access remains inclusive to a building throughout its lifetime, and 
not merely ancillary to its existence. Access Statements are encouraged by the ODPM as 
part of the development process in their guide Planning and Access for Disabled People: 
'A Good Practice Guide' (published March 2003). A key component of the Access 
Statement submission, is a need to qualify the written statement by way of an 
accompanying a marked-up plan, clearly illustrating all access provisions and the 
standards to which they refer.  This, in turn, will allow development applications to be dealt 
with swiftly and efficiently, and moreover, will ensure that appropriate access standards 
are applied consistently to all qualifying developments.  It is therefore the council's 
intention to demonstrate the benefits of Access Statements within the SPD, which will 
include an example marked-up plan, specific to Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair Standard 
Housing. The use of Access Statements will allow for formalised monitoring of access 
provision within the development control process, and will allow for efficient future 
monitoring of the SPD. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 21

Appendix 1: Example of a baseline data collection sheet for one 
scheme. Details Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair Accessible Housing 
assessment criteria 

 

 
 

 

Stanmore Park, Stanmore - E/1058/99/FUL - 411 units - Unit 3K
Analysis of Lifetime Homes Standard housing
CRITERIA Yes No ?

Car Parking - adjacent, capable width > 3.3m x
Car parking - space between car park and home level ?
Entrance - approaches level or gently sloping ?
Entrance - illuminated, level & covered ?
Lifts - wheelchair accessible x
Width - position of doors and halls  ?
Internal turning space - 1500mm diametre x
Siting room - at entrance level x
Bedroom - ground floor x
Downstairs W.C - wheelchair accessible & shower x
W.C. Walls - adaptable ie. handrails ?
Future Stair lift Provision ?
Provision for ceiling tract hoist ?
W.C & Bathroom - side approach x
Windows - 800mm or lower x
Switches - 450mm to 1200mm ?
TOTAL 7 1 8
RESULTS = total No. of Lifetime Homes 0
Analysis of Wheelchair Standard Homes
CRITERIA Yes No ?

Car parking - covered x
Storage space - outdoor mobility vehicles x
Letter Box - type and height suitability ?
circulation areas - 1200mm minimum x
Internal doors - to open > 90 degrees x
Leading Edge - 550mm from adjacent wall x
Bathroom - 2400mm x 2400mm x
Kitchen - 1400mm x 1400mm x
Storage cupboard - disabled equipment x
TOTAL 2 6 1
RESULTS = total No. of wheelchair Standard Homes 0

Applied

Applied

55



 
22

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 2

: T
ab

le
 to

 te
st

s 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 o
f t

he
 M

ob
ili

ty
 W

he
el

ch
ai

r H
ou

si
ng

 S
PD

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

SE
A

 
cr

ite
ria

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
lik

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 S
PD

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l f

ac
to

rs
 

 M
ob

ili
ty

 
W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

PD
 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 

 Th
e 

lik
el

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r H

ou
si

ng
 A

ll 
SP

D
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l f
ac

to
rs

 in
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
A

cc
es

s 
fo

r A
 S

PD
. T

he
 ta

bl
e 

al
so

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

lik
el

y 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 m

on
ito

r t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 W

he
el

ch
ai

r H
ou

si
ng

 
SP

D
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 

Social 

Economic 

Environmental 

Short Term 

Medium Term 

Long Term 

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

Population & 
Human Health 

Water and Soil 

Air Quality 

Climatic 
Factors 

Cultural 
Heritage & 

Archaeology

Landscape & 
Townscape 

Material Assets 

 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

oc
ia

l 
in

cl
us

io
n 

fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

th
at

 is
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
in

 it
s 

de
si

gn
, l

oc
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 
 

 

+ 
+ 

+ 
 

 
 

 
+ 

 
 

 
+ 

+ 
+ 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ts

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 w
ith

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 n
ot

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 a

s 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
 a

fte
rth

ou
gh

ts
. 

56



 
23

M
ob

ili
ty

 
W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

PD
 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 

 Th
e 

lik
el

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r H

ou
si

ng
 A

ll 
SP

D
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l f
ac

to
rs

 in
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
A

cc
es

s 
fo

r A
 S

PD
. T

he
 ta

bl
e 

al
so

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

lik
el

y 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 m

on
ito

r t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 W

he
el

ch
ai

r H
ou

si
ng

 
SP

D
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 

Social 

Economic 

Environmental 

Short Term 

Medium Term 

Long Term 

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

Population & 
Human Health 

Water and Soil 

Air Quality 

Climatic 
Factors 

Cultural 
Heritage & 

Archaeology 

Landscape & 
Townscape 

Material Assets 

 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ho
us

in
g 

th
at

 
el

im
in

at
es

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r p

ot
en

tia
l 

co
st

ly
 fu

tu
re

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 
  

 

+ 
+ 

+ 
 

 
 

+ 
 

 
 

+ 
+ 

+ 

 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ne

w
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 b

e 
fle

xi
bl

e,
 e

as
y 

to
 

us
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
 a

ll 
oc

cu
pi

er
s 

  

 

+ 
+ 

+ 
 

 
 

+ 
 

 
 

 
+ 

+ 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ts

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 w
ith

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 n
ot

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 a

s 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
 a

fte
rth

ou
gh

ts
. 

57



 
24

 

58



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\4\AI00023405\StatementofCommunityInvolvementSCIInitialConsultationResponses.0.doc 

 
 
 

 
Meeting:   
 

Strategic Planning Advisory Panel 

Date: 
 

Tuesday 13th September 2005 

Subject: 
 

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI): 
Initial Consultation Responses. 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Director of Strategy (Urban Living) 

Contact Officer: 
 

Charles Alonge 

Portfolio Holder:  
 

Planning, Development and Housing 

Key Decision: 
 

None 

Status: 
 

Public 

 
Section 1: Summary 
The Panel agreed, at its meeting on 13th July 2005, the process for progressing 
the Statement of Community Involvement SCI.  Prior to the meeting a letter and 
questionnaire were sent to all those on the Planning consultation database, 
asking them to indicate their preferred approach for participating in the 
preparation of the SCI and the Local Development Framework (LDF).  The main 
purpose was to update the Council’s consultation database and to establish the 
main contact for future correspondence and communication. 
The initial consultation period was for 4 weeks between July and August 2005 
and this report sets out the results of this exercise.  It gives an overview of rate of 
response and highlights some of the issues raised by the respondents.  A 
breakdown of the responses and the summary of the comments and suggestions 
is attached as Appendix 1.  The detailed responses are attached as Appendix 2. 
 
Decision Required 
The Panel is recommended to:- 
(i) Note the comments received following the initial consultation on the SCI; 
(ii) Note progress against the timetable and agree that officers should proceed to 
formal public consultation on the SCI. 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 59 to 84

59



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\4\AI00023405\StatementofCommunityInvolvementSCIInitialConsultationResponses.0.doc 

Reason for report 
 
The Council is required to have an adopted Statement of Community 
Involvement in accordance with the LDS agreed timetable and Members have 
requested to be kept informed of the progress.  The deadline for the adoption of 
the SCI is set in the LDS, and adhering to the timetable and the delivery of the 
programme set out in the LDS are important considerations for Planning Delivery 
Grant.  Public Involvement in the preparation of SCI is deemed to be a positive 
move towards increasing public awareness at the outset. 
 
 
Benefits 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to prepare a Statement of Community 
Involvement.  Submission of the SCI to the Government Office for London (GOL) 
according to agreed timetable and the Inspectorate (PINS) for examination by 
March 2006 will ensure that the Council’s ability to attract appropriate level of 
Planning Delivery Grant. 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
The cost of producing the SCI document is contained within the current 
Departmental budget. Any associated cost relating to future consultation would 
be considered in future reports. 
 
Risks 
 
Delaying the SCI would effectively result in the Council’s failure to meet the Local 
Development Scheme (LDS) timetable milestones.  This may also lead to a 
reduction in the Planning Delivery Grant (PDG).  Equally the failure to proceed 
accordingly will undermine the Council’s commitment to the new planning system 
as prescribed by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  The 
importance of the provision of adequate resources is important to the success of 
the whole process. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
This will lead to a failure to meet the approved LDS timetable. 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 

The SCI is an essential part of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act.  
The Act requires every local planning authority to produce a Statement of 
Community Involvement as part of the Local Development Framework.  The 
working draft SCI is being developed and the comments received as a result 
of the initial consultation will assist in the production of the document.  A key 
part of the new planning process will be to demonstrate how information 
from, and the views of, the community have been taken on board.  This 
report reflects that. 

60



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\4\AI00023405\StatementofCommunityInvolvementSCIInitialConsultationResponses.0.doc 

 
2.2 Results of the Consultation 

In comparison to other London Boroughs that have carried out similar 
exercises, the level of response rate was very good and the comments 
received have helped to update the consultation database which was first 
set up in 1998 and only partially updated since then.  The modified 
database will inform the future engagement process.  
 
The main findings of the questionnaire predictably revealed that different 
stakeholders preferred to participate in different ways. For example 
organisations tended to prefer Focus Groups whilst residents preferred 
Road Shows, a mixture of stakeholders preferred one-to-one meetings. 
What the questionnaire revealed was that none of the options suggested 
could be discounted and this should reflected in the approach set out in this 
SCI.  The main conclusions reached on the answers to the questions asked 
are set out on the first page of Appendix 1. 
 

2.3 Consultation 
The stages for producing the SCI, as set down in the approved LDS, will 
follow the appropriate procedures, including the formal consultation stage. 
 

2.4 Financial Implications 
Costs are contained within the approved Departmental budget. 
 

2.5 Legal Implications 
(Comments included in the report) 
 

2.6 Equalities Impact 
Effective community engagement promotes equality of opportunity and 
social inclusion. 

 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/Background Documents 
Background Documents:  
 

1. Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development  
2. Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Development Frameworks. 
3. The London Plan (Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London), Mayor 

of London, February 2004.  
 
 

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 
Summary of responses to the initial consultation on SCI 
 
An initial consultation was carried out for four weeks during July and August 
2005.  The main purpose was to update the Council’s consultation database 
and to find out how people would like to be involved in the development plan 
process. In total about 1600 individuals, organisations, community groups and 
utility companies were consulted.  Below is a summary of the responses: 
 
The Purpose of the Consultation 
The main purposes were: 

• To update the database for future consultation; 
• To raise awareness about the LDF process; 
• To find out how people would like to be involved and the issues 

considered to be paramount. 
• To build capacity and partnership 

 
Questions Asked and the Main Conclusions Reached 
Apart from asking for contact details the questionnaire sent out specifically 
requested respondent to answer the following questions.  The main 
conclusions reached are: 
 
1 How would you prefer to be contacted? 
 Majority of people and organisations prefer to be contacted by written 

correspondence, email and telephone. 
 
2 What particular issues are of most interest to you or your 

organisation? 
 No new issues of particular significance were identified.  As requested, 

some organisations and individuals used the opportunity to express 
their views about matters that were of interest to them.  Such matters, 
included facilities for young people, elderly, open space, entertainment 
facilities and anti-social behaviour. 

 
3 Are there any particular area(s) of the Borough that you are most 

interested in? 
 Different parts of the Borough were mentioned.  A few groups 

mentioned the whole Borough 
 
4 What methods do you consider would be most successful in 

engaging you or your particular group? 
 Most of the methods mentioned by respondents have already been 

included in the draft SCI.  However some organisations indicated that 
visiting their local group meetings would encourage the young people 
to become more engaged in the process. 

 
5 Are there any particular methods of community involvement that 

should be used by the Council? 

63



 See response to Q4 
 
6 Are there any issues you wish the Council to take into account in 

preparing the draft SCI? 
 A whole range of issues were mentioned, although these are not 

directly relevant the SCI process they will assist engagement on the 
development of the LDF documents. 

 
A summary of the comments, suggestions and issues raised have been 
summarised in the tables attached to this report. 
 
Summary of the comments received and main issues raised  
The responses were received and some of the respondents raised a number 
of detailed matters, which are summarised and attached as appendix 1.  The 
table below gives an indication of the nature and levels the of the responses 
received: 
 
Table 1 – Responses by type 
 
 Number  
Completed questionnaires 208  
Letter 7**  
E-mail 11  
Telephone Call 12*  
Unable to deliver 12  
Deletions 79  
Amended addresses 43  
Addresses added 13  
 
Notes 
* a phone call requesting to be deleted would be recorded as both a telephone call and a 

deletion 

** The number of letters does not include those accompanied by questionnaires 
 
Comments Received 
In general terms the comment received proved invaluable and has helped to 
update the Consultation database which was first set up in 1998 and only 
partially updated since then.  The modified database would inform on the 
future engagement process. 
 
The results of the questionnaire revealed that different stakeholders preferred 
to participate in different ways. For example organisations tended to prefer 
Focus Groups whilst residents preferred Road Shows, a mixture of 
stakeholders preferred One to One meetings. What the questionnaire 
revealed was that none of the options could be discounted and this is 
reflected in the approach set out in this SCI. 
 
The level of response rate was very good in comparison to the experience of 
other London Boroughs that have carried out similar exercises. As shown 

64



above 208 respondents completed the questionnaire.  In addition to the 12 
recorded telephone calls several other telephone conversations regarding the 
SCI were not recorded. Of the 4 letters received only one contained some 
information which does not support the Council’s approach.  As a result of the 
information received 79 names and addresses were deleted while 13 were 
added.  Also 40 addresses were amended.  12 were returned as unable to 
deliver. 
 
Next Step 
This initial consultation is a useful starting point and an up to date database 
provides a useful tool for future action.  It is important to follow the success of 
this exercise with the following concrete actions by: 
A Incorporating matters raised in the consultation in the draft SCI 
B Amending database in accordance to the information received 
C Setting up a new database that would assist the effectiveness of the 

SCI. 
 
Conclusion 
The results of the questionnaire have helped to do two things. First it has 
enabled the Council to update the database which has not been revised fully 
since 1998.  Second, It has also helped to develop approaches set out in the 
draft Statement of Community Involvement.  Second, it assisted in formulating 
view on the methods that are likely to be popular with community groups and 
stakeholders. 
 
 

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n/
In

di
vi

du
al

 n
am

e
Q

2:
 Is

su
es

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t*

Q
3:

 A
re

as
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t
Q

4:
 M

et
ho

ds
 o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t

Q
5:

 M
et

ho
ds

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t
Q

6:
 Is

su
es

 fo
r d

ra
ft 

SC
I

9t
h 

Ke
nt

on
 S

co
ut

 G
ro

up
4,

 5
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

2 
(fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

)

Ke
nt

on
Vi

si
ts

 to
 o

ur
 g

ro
up

 m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 m

ak
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
 o

ur
 y

ou
ng

 m
em

be
rs

.  
So

m
e 

le
ad

er
s 

co
ul

d 
at

te
nd

 
m

ee
tin

gs
/tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

rra
ng

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
if 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

Vi
si

ts
 to

 o
ur

 g
ro

up
 m

ee
tin

gs
.  

M
ak

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 o

f c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
m

or
e 

w
id

el
y 

kn
ow

n.

Pr
ov

id
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f i
ts

 p
la

ns
 fo

r f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

- 
i.e

. r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

N
or

th
 H

ar
ro

w
 

Bo
lin

g 
Al

le
y 

Al
l S

ai
nt

s 
C

hu
rc

h
11

O
ur

 p
ar

is
h 

- t
he

 h
ea

th
 

an
d 

W
ea

ld
st

on
e

Sp
ea

ke
rs

 a
t l

oc
al

 m
ee

tin
g 

in
 C

hu
rc

h 
H

al
l

Sm
al

l l
oc

al
 m

ee
tin

gs

An
ch

or
 T

ru
st

11
Pi

nn
er

 a
nd

 S
ta

nm
or

e
Lo

ca
lly

 a
rra

ng
ed

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

nd
 p

os
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 
te

na
nt

 g
ro

up
s 

M
et

ho
ds

 u
se

d 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

cl
ie

nt
 

gr
ou

ps
 m

us
t r

ea
lis

tic
al

ly
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

e,
 

i.e
 v

en
ue

s 
m

us
t b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
y 

al
l 

an
d 

at
 ti

m
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

tra
ve

llin
g

As
ia

n 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

fo
r H

el
p

1,
 2

, 3
, 5

, 7
, 8

, 1
0

H
el

p 
fo

r b
lin

d 
an

d 
ne

ed
y 

pe
op

le
R

ai
si

ng
 fu

nd
s 

fo
r c

ha
rit

y
O

rg
an

is
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

, a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 to
 ra

is
e 

fu
nd

s
As

ia
n 

Pa
re

nt
s 

G
ro

up
2,

 5
, 7

, 8
, 1

0
Ba

rc
la

ys
 B

an
k

2,
 3

, 6
, 1

0
G

ro
up

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

Ba
rro

w
de

ne
 C

lo
se

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

1,
 4

, 8
Pi

nn
er

Sp
ea

ke
r a

t a
nn

ua
l m

ee
tin

g,
 e

sp
. i

f 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 b

e 
di

sc
us

se
d

Ba
rto

n 
W

illm
or

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
11

So
ut

h 
H

ar
ro

w
, H

ar
ro

w
 

W
ea

ld
Fo

rm
al

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 w
rit

te
n 

re
sp

on
se

, o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

Th
e 

SC
I s

ho
ul

d 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

ro
le

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 is

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 
th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t

Ba
rto

n 
W

illm
or

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
11

Be
nt

le
y 

Pr
io

ry
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

om
m

itt
ee

11
Lo

ca
l N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
s 

an
d 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
si

te
s

Pu
bl

ic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

co
ns

en
su

s 
of

 o
pi

ni
on

 is
 

ac
te

d 
up

on

G
re

en
 b

el
t p

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 tr

af
fic

 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n,

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

ai
r 

po
llu

tio
n 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
hi

gh
 d

en
si

ty
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
, 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
na

tu
re

 
re

se
rv

es
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
se

rio
us

ly
 w

ith
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fi
na

nc
in

g

Bn
ai

 B
rit

h 
H

ou
si

ng
 T

ru
st

2,
 5

, 7
, 1

2 
(e

ld
er

ly
)

Br
iti

sh
 R

ed
 C

ro
ss

5,
 7

E-
m

ai
l c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
- c

an
 b

e 
fo

rw
ar

de
d 

to
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

 e
as

ily
 a

nd
 d

oe
sn

’t 
w

as
te

 
pa

pe
r

N
o

R
ol

e 
of

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r, 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

su
es

, n
ot

 p
en

al
is

in
g 

la
rg

er
 c

ha
rit

ie
s 

in
 fu

nd
in

g 
et

c

67



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

C
an

on
s 

Pa
rk

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
, 1

2 
(P

ol
ic

in
g,

 ro
ad

s 
an

d 
fo

ot
pa

th
s,

 C
an

on
s 

Pa
rk

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e)

Ar
ea

 u
p 

to
 a

 m
ile

 
ra

di
us

 o
f C

an
on

s 
Pa

rk
 

St
at

io
n

C
irc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 d

ra
ft 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 
C

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
er

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

; w
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

ith
 w

ar
d 

co
un

ci
llo

rs
 a

nd
/o

r c
ou

nc
illo

rs
 w

ho
 s

it 
on

 v
ar

io
us

 c
om

m
itt

ee
s

O
ve

r a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
m

et
ho

ds
 fo

r m
or

e 
ge

ne
ra

l b
or

ou
gh

-
w

id
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 g

en
er

al
 is

su
es

 
us

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 M

ag
az

in
e 

fo
r f

ee
db

ac
k 

of
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

C
an

on
s 

Pa
rk

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
C

an
on

s 
Pa

rk
, 

St
an

m
or

e 
an

d 
Ed

gw
ar

e,
 p

lu
s 

m
aj

or
 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 in

 
H

ar
ro

w

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 in
 o

ur
 a

re
a,

 
al

so
 m

aj
or

 G
re

en
 B

el
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 im

po
rta

nt
 p

ub
lic

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
, h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

tra
ns

po
rt 

- a
nd

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 h

as
 

a 
w

id
er

 im
pa

ct
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

m
an

y 
lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

s.
  A

ls
o 

m
aj

or
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 o

n 
ec

ol
og

y,
 e

ne
rg

y 
sa

vi
ng

 a
nd

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Pr
op

er
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 b
ef

or
e 

m
aj

or
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
re

 a
pp

lie
d 

fo
r -

 s
o 

vi
ew

s 
ca

n 
be

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

be
fo

re
 d

es
ig

ns
 a

re
 d

ra
w

n 
up

 a
nd

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 c

om
m

itt
ee

s.
  U

se
 o

f 
lib

ra
rie

s 
to

 m
ou

nt
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

s 
an

d 
m

od
el

s 
of

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r p
ub

lic
 

co
m

m
en

t a
nd

 in
pu

t

O
ve

rd
ev

el
op

m
en

t -
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 h
ei

gh
t 

an
d 

de
ns

ity
 li

m
its

 in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
as

.  
Im

pa
ct

 o
f h

ig
h 

de
ns

ity
 o

n 
tra

ffi
c 

an
d 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  B

ad
 d

es
ig

ns
 th

t a
re

 
al

lo
w

ed
.  

Al
l n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 z

er
o 

en
er

gy
 w

ith
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 a
cc

es
s.

  
Sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
si

gn
 te

am
s 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
re

ps
 a

nd
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

.  
D

es
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 
lo

ca
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

 - 
ho

rri
bl

e 
w

in
do

w
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

.  
M

an
y 

19
30

s 
ar

ea
s 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

s 
- h

av
e 

no
w

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
ru

in
ed

.

C
at

al
ys

t H
ou

si
ng

2,
 5

, 7
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
up

da
te

s 
(e

-m
ai

le
d)

 a
nd

 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ee
tin

gs
O

pe
n 

da
ys

/w
or

ks
ho

ps

C
in

em
a 

Th
ea

tre
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
8,

 1
2 

(e
nt

er
ta

in
m

en
t 

bu
ild

in
gs

)
C

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 o

n 
al

te
ra

tio
ns

 o
r 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r d

em
ol

iti
on

 o
n 

al
l 

ci
ne

m
as

 a
nd

 fo
rm

er
 c

in
em

a 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 th

os
e 

th
at

 
ar

e 
lis

te
d

C
irc

or
 In

st
ru

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Lt

d
11

C
iv

il 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

et
ire

m
en

t 
Fe

llo
w

sh
ip

1,
 5

, 7
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f g
ro

up
s 

w
hi

ch
 

m
ee

t m
on

th
ly

 - 
a 

ha
lf 

ho
ur

 ta
lk

 a
nd

 a
 

ha
lf 

ho
ur

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 re

ac
h 

m
os

t. 
 Q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s/
no

tic
es

 o
f 

m
ee

tin
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

en
t.

W
ou

ld
 b

e 
gr

at
ef

ul
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t p
la

ns
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

/c
os

ts
 o

f p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t, 

lo
ca

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r 

th
e 

el
de

rly
, a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 lo
ca

l 
am

en
iti

es
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 s

ho
ps

.

El
de

rly
 p

eo
pl

e 
fa

ce
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

fro
m

 
cy

cl
es

 o
n 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
; c

ar
s/

lo
rri

es
 

fo
rc

in
g 

th
em

 to
 w

al
k 

ro
un

d 
in

 th
e 

ro
ad

; 
un

ev
en

/b
ro

ke
n 

pa
vi

ng
; r

ub
bi

sh
 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
on

 p
at

hw
ay

s;
 c

ar
s 

sp
ee

di
ng

 
ac

ro
ss

 re
d 

tra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
s.

C
lo

na
rd

 W
ay

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11
Le

af
le

t w
ith

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r f
ee

db
ac

k
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 v
ot

e 
on

 is
su

es
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 s
ur

ve
ys

C
ol

m
an

 C
ou

rt 
R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
1,

 2
, 4

G
or

do
n 

Av
ev

ue
Po

st

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

in
k 

U
p

1,
 3

, 5
, 7

, 1
0

In
fo

rm
al

 fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 in

 s
m

al
l g

ro
up

s
Ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 ro
ut

es
 to

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t f

or
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s
Ac

ce
ss

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s

68



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r B

rit
is

h 
Ar

ch
ae

ol
og

y
11

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 M

id
dl

es
ex

 T
ru

st
11

Su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f d
ra

ft 
pr

op
os

al
s,

 g
ro

up
 

di
sc

us
si

on
 m

ee
tin

gs
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
of

 g
re

en
 b

el
t a

nd
 li

st
ed

 
bu

ild
in

gs
, t

ra
ns

po
rt 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f 

m
aj

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

C
SC

I
5,

 6
, 7

, 8
D

av
id

 W
or

th
in

g
1,

 2
, 4

, 5
, 7

, 8
, 9

In
vi

ta
tio

n 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

, n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tiv
e 

do
cu

m
en

ts
D

eb
en

ha
m

s
1,

 3
, 6

To
w

n 
ce

nt
re

Ti
m

el
y 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

D
en

e 
C

ou
rt 

R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
St

an
m

or
e 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 a
nd

 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 a
re

a

R
el

ev
an

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
m

ai
l

N
ot

hi
ng

 c
om

es
 to

 m
in

d

D
om

in
io

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 G

ro
up

1,
 2

, 3
, 4

, 7
, 1

0,
 1

2 
(h

ar
d 

to
 re

ac
h 

BM
E 

gr
ou

ps
)

D
om

in
io

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 G

ro
up

11
W

ea
ld

st
on

e
Fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
, n

ew
sl

et
te

rs
Pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r R
ea

l
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

, C
om

m
un

ity
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

D
PD

S 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
11

Ea
rw

ig
 C

lu
b

11
So

ut
h 

H
ar

ro
w

Li
pr

ea
di

ng
 c

la
ss

es
C

an
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
lo

ok
 in

to
 th

e 
fa

ct
 

th
at

 b
la

ck
 ta

xi
s 

do
n'

t a
lw

ay
s 

tu
rn

 u
p

Bu
s 

dr
iv

er
s 

ne
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 h

ow
 to

 
st

op
 b

us
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

iv
e 

us
 a

 
sm

oo
th

 ri
de

ED
F 

En
er

gy
12

 (n
um

be
r o

f n
ew

 
pr

op
er

tie
s,

 in
du

st
ria

l 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

)

La
rg

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

el
ec

tri
ca

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

po
ss

ib
le

 
sp

ac
e 

fo
r n

ew
 s

ub
st

at
io

ns

W
e 

m
us

t a
ll 

liv
e 

to
ge

th
er

 a
s 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r o

ne
 a

no
th

er
's

 
ne

ed
s

Ed
gw

ar
e 

an
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 R
ef

or
m

 
Sy

na
go

gu
e

1,
 3

, 4
, 7

, 8
, 1

0
Th

e 
ar

ea
 n

ea
re

st
 to

 
us

To
 re

m
em

be
r i

t i
s 

a 
m

ul
ti-

cu
ltu

ra
l 

bo
ro

ug
h 

w
ith

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
ra

ce
/re

lig
io

ns
Ed

gw
ar

e 
Sa

fe
r N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
Te

am
1,

 2
, 6

, 7
, 8

, 1
0,

 1
2 

(a
nt

i-
so

ci
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
)

Ed
gw

ar
e 

w
ar

d
Fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
, p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
, 

cl
os

e 
lia

is
on

El
m

 P
ar

k 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11
Al

l G
re

en
 B

el
t

Le
tte

rs
 a

nd
 n

ew
sp

ap
er

 n
ot

ic
es

 o
f 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
r s

ur
ve

ys
 fo

r i
np

ut
 in

to
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

fe
el

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

ck
lin

g

Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
s,

 m
ee

tin
gs

 o
r s

ur
ve

ys
Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
po

in
t h

av
in

g 
a 

SC
I i

f 
H

ar
ro

w
's

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
ig

no
re

d.
  U

nl
es

s 
th

e 
'in

vo
lv

ed
' 

co
m

m
un

ity
's

 c
on

se
ns

us
 o

f o
pi

ni
on

 
ca

rri
es

 a
ny

 w
ei

gh
t t

hi
s 

is
 y

et
 a

no
th

er
 

po
in

tle
ss

 e
xe

rc
is

e.
  T

he
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 
H

ar
ro

w
 h

av
e 

be
co

m
e 

us
ed

 to
 b

ei
ng

 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

an
d 

th
en

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

no
 w

ei
gh

t o
r b

ei
ng

 ig
no

re
d

69



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

El
m

w
oo

d 
Ar

ea
 R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

El
m

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
C

on
su

lt/
in

vo
lv

e 
us

 in
 fo

rm
in

g 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
LD

F
Q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s
Pr

ef
er

 to
 b

e 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

by
 e

-m
ai

l

En
gl

is
h 

G
ol

f U
ni

on
11

, 1
2 

(le
is

ur
e 

pu
rs

ui
ts

)
N

or
th

w
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r g
ol

f c
ou

rs
es

 in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h

D
o 

no
t u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

n
To

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 g

ol
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r 

ju
ni

or
s 

an
d 

be
gi

nn
er

s 
- f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

at
 

va
rio

us
 c

lu
bs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 li

st
ed

En
gl

is
h 

H
er

ita
ge

11
Al

l s
ta

ge
s 

of
 L

D
F 

pl
an

H
is

to
ric

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

bu
ilt

 h
er

ita
ge

, 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

y
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y

11
N

or
m

al
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
Fo

re
st

ry
 C

om
m

is
si

on
8,

 9
Tr

ee
s 

an
d 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
is

su
es

Fr
ie

nd
s 

of
 B

en
tle

y 
Pr

io
ry

 N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

8,
 9

Be
nt

le
y 

Pr
io

ry
 N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
 a

nd
 

su
rro

un
ds

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pa
m

ph
le

ts
 a

nd
 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 h

an
d 

by
 

C
ou

nc
il

BP
N

 R
es

er
ve

 is
 a

 n
at

ur
e 

re
se

rv
e 

- n
ot

 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ar
k 

- a
nd

 is
 a

 S
SS

I

G
 B

ra
nc

h
1,

 5
, 7

, 8
, 9

M
ay

or
al

ty
 a

nd
 c

ha
rit

y 
is

su
es

, v
ol

un
ta

ry
 

se
ct

or

Po
st

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

G
ay

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11

G
ay

to
n 

R
oa

d 
ca

r 
pa

rk
, S

on
ia

 C
ou

rt,
 

lib
ra

ry
 s

ite

So
rry

 c
an

no
t h

el
p 

- t
en

an
ts

 c
om

e 
an

d 
go

, f
la

ts
 a

ll 
re

nt
ed

 o
n 

sh
or

t t
er

m
 

le
as

es

Sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

to
p 

pr
io

rit
y:

 re
-

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f C
ol

le
ge

 R
oa

d 
ar

ea

G
en

er
al

 A
vi

at
io

n 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

C
ou

nc
il

1

G
eo

rg
e 

W
im

pe
y 

W
es

t L
on

do
n

11
Br

ie
fin

gs
/P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

su
ita

bl
e 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t

H
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 s

ur
ve

ys
 o

n 
a 

m
or

e 
ar

ea
 s

pe
ci

fic
 b

as
is

En
su

re
 th

at
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

no
t p

or
tra

ye
d 

in
 th

e 
us

ua
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

lig
ht

G
eo

rg
e 

W
im

pe
y 

W
es

t L
on

do
n

2,
 8

, 9
G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r L
on

do
n

11
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 u

s 
fo

r a
dv

ic
e/

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 b
y 

an
y 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n

Ta
ke

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
in

to
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

 E
st

at
e 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

pl
ay

 a
re

a 
at

 
G

ra
ng

e 
Fa

rm
 E

st
at

e

G
re

en
hi

ll 
an

d 
M

ar
lb

or
ou

gh
 L

ab
ou

r
Pa

rty
11

, 1
2 

(p
op

ul
at

io
n 

de
ns

ity
)

1)
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
, 2

) 
G

re
en

hi
ll 

an
d 

M
ar

lb
or

ou
gh

 w
ar

ds

1)
 p

ub
lic

 m
ee

tin
g,

 q
&a

; 2
) w

eb
si

te
 a

nd
 

e-
m

ai
l q

&a
; 3

) n
ew

sl
et

te
r d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
by

 e
-m

ai
l

Ta
lk

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

Iu
np

la
nn

ed
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
gr

ow
th

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 u

ns
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
uc

h 
as

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l p

re
ss

ur
es

 o
n 

w
at

er
 

su
pp

ly
, t

ra
ns

po
rt,

 re
fu

se
 d

is
po

sa
l

G
re

en
sw

ar
d 

Pr
op

er
tie

s
11

St
an

m
or

e

70



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

G
rim

s 
D

yk
e 

H
ot

el
11

, 1
2 

(T
ou

ris
m

)
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
To

ur
is

m
Fo

cu
s 

G
ro

up
Be

ne
fit

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 to
ur

is
ts

 

H
ar

dw
ic

k 
C

ou
rt 

(F
re

eh
ol

d)
 L

td
1,

 4
, 9

Lo
ca

l p
re

ss
, i

nt
er

es
t g

ro
up

s
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f d
er

el
ic

t s
ite

s
H

ar
ro

w
 A

ge
nd

a 
21

11
, 1

2 
(b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n,
 e

ne
rg

y)
G

re
en

 B
el

t, 
ga

rd
en

s,
 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
, o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
, h

ou
si

ng
, 

ro
ad

s,
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s

Sp
ec

ify
 o

pt
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

se
le

ct
ed

Sp
ec

ify
 o

pt
io

ns
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 w
ha

t 
is

 o
n 

of
fe

r
Al

l i
ss

ue
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y 

- i
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

si
ra

bl
e 

to
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

dr
af

t S
C

I

H
ar

ro
w

 A
si

an
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

1,
 2

, 3
, 4

, 5
, 7

, 8
, 1

0
Ke

ep
in

g 
us

 in
fo

rm
ed

W
ha

te
ve

r i
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
H

ar
ro

w
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 S
om

al
i 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

2,
 3

, 5
, 7

, 1
0

Fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 m

ee
tin

g 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
ex

pl
or

e 
id

ea
s

En
ga

gi
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
ha

s 
a 

lo
t o

f a
dv

an
ta

ge
 b

ec
au

se
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 m

em
be

rs
 c

om
e 

to
 u

s 
at

 
fir

st
 to

 te
ll 

us
 th

ei
r p

ro
bl

em
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r n
ee

ds

Ye
s,

 w
e 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 h
ol

d 
a 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 y
ou

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 s

pe
ll 

ou
t o

ur
 v

ie
w

s

H
ar

ro
w

 B
ap

tis
t C

hu
rc

h
11

C
ol

le
ge

 R
oa

d 
- o

ld
 

Po
st

 O
ffi

ce
 s

ite
St

ak
eh

ol
de

r m
ee

tin
gs

H
ar

ro
w

 C
N

D
1,

 4
, 8

, 1
2 

(n
uc

le
ar

 
tra

in
s)

Ar
ea

s 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 m

ai
n 

ra
ilw

ay
 li

ne
D

oo
r-t

o-
do

or
 p

et
iti

on
s/

le
af

le
tin

g 
to

 
ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ab

ou
t n

uc
le

ar
 

ar
m

am
en

ts
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t

Ag
en

da
 2

1 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l F

or
um

C
on

su
lt 

ab
ou

t n
uc

le
ar

 tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 
w

as
te

 is
su

es

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

10
R

ay
ne

rs
 L

an
e,

 S
ou

th
 

H
ar

ro
w

, W
ea

ld
st

on
e,

 
Pi

nn
er

Pu
bl

ic
ity

, c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
er

s
U

si
ng

 C
ou

nc
il 

ve
nu

es
, f

un
di

ng
C

ut
s 

in
 a

du
lt 

ed
uc

at
io

n

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

11
H

ar
ro

w
 W

ea
ld

, 
H

ar
ro

w
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
R

eg
ul

ar
 u

pd
at

es
 e

.g
. e

-n
ew

sl
et

te
r, 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

nd
 g

ro
up

 m
ee

tin
gs

N
ee

d 
to

 m
es

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 ti

m
el

in
es

 
w

ith
 th

os
e 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
/o

th
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
11

To
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

ed
uc

at
io

n

Fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

, d
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

, a
re

a 
m

ee
tin

gs
, w

eb
 

su
rv

ey
s

Pr
op

os
al

 s
ite

 6
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
 fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

(D
ra

in
ag

e 
te

am
)

12
 (d

ra
in

ag
e)

U
su

al
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
su

lti
ng

 c
ha

nn
el

s

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

(E
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

, 
ch

ild
ca

re
 a

nd
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
e)

1,
 2

, 3
, 5

, 7
, 1

0
H

ar
ro

w
's

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ar

ea
s 

of
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
e

W
rit

te
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n/

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

(S
ha

ne
 

Br
ac

ke
nb

ur
g)

1,
 2

, 5
, 7

Fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 m

ee
tin

gs
, p

os
te

rs
, w

rit
te

n 
co

rre
sp

on
da

nc
e,

 lo
ca

l n
ew

sp
ap

er
En

su
re

 a
ll 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 a

nd
 a

ll 
BM

E 
gr

ou
ps

 a
re

 
fu

lly
 e

ng
ag

ed
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

ed

La
rg

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 p

ar
tia

l 
si

gh
t, 

au
di

o 
ta

pe
s 

fo
r b

lin
d 

pe
op

le
, 

ea
sy

 te
xt

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
y

71



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r R

ac
ia

l J
us

tic
e

11
Ed

uc
at

io
n,

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
he

al
th

, 
ho

us
in

g,
 

so
ci

al
/c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

In
vo

lv
in

g 
fro

m
 s

ta
rt 

in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

/d
ev

el
op

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
ou

tc
om

es

U
se

 o
f I

T,
 e

.g
 in

te
rn

et
, e

-m
ai

l
N

ee
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

br
ie

fin
g 

fro
m

 L
BH

 b
ef

or
e 

co
m

m
en

tin
g 

re
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 d
ra

ft 
SC

I

H
ar

ro
w

 H
er

ita
ge

 T
ru

st
11

Vi
ew

s 
m

us
t b

e 
ta

ke
n 

on
 b

oa
rd

, 
de

ci
si

on
s 

m
us

t r
em

ai
n 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

af
te

r c
on

su
lta

tio
n

O
ffi

ce
r a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t q

ua
rte

rly
 

m
ee

tin
gs

Pl
an

ne
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

lia
is

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
C

ou
nc

il 
de

pt
s 

- "
jo

in
ed

 u
p 

th
in

ki
ng

"; 
co

m
m

un
ity

 v
ie

w
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 

co
un

t
H

ar
ro

w
 H

ill 
Tr

us
t

11
H

ar
ro

w
 H

ill 
AO

SC
Pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ar
e 

de
le

ga
te

d 
to

 
th

e 
Tr

us
t's

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Su

b-
C

om
m

itt
ee

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
of

 M
O

L

H
ar

ro
w

 in
 L

ea
f

4,
 8

Al
lo

tm
en

ts
W

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
al

lo
tm

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s

W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
fo

r a
llo

tm
en

ts
 in

 
th

e 
LD

F
H

ar
ro

w
 Ir

an
ia

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
5,

 7
, 1

0
O

ra
gn

is
in

g 
se

m
in

ar
s 

an
d 

ge
t-t

og
et

he
r 

se
ss

io
ns

Bu
ild

in
g 

a 
re

pu
ta

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

en
tre

 
fo

r H
ar

ro
w

H
ar

ro
w

 L
ET

S
11

A 
fa

ci
lit

y 
fo

r f
re

e 
ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 fo
r o

ur
 

gr
ou

p
By

 h
el

pi
ng

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

LE
TS

 
gr

ou
p

H
ar

ro
w

 M
en

ca
p

11
Al

l
Fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
, f

ac
e-

to
-fa

ce
, a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
fo

rm
at

 if
 in

 w
rit

in
g

M
ak

in
g 

it 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ilit

ie
s

H
ar

ro
w

 M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h
11

In
te

r f
ai

th
At

 le
as

t 6
 w

ee
ks

 n
ot

ic
e 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
fo

r a
ll 

m
ee

tin
gs

H
ar

ro
w

 M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
Pr

op
er

tie
s 

an
d 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11

W
ho

le
 b

or
ou

gh
Ea

rly
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 o

f i
de

as
/p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 

th
e 

co
nt

ac
ts

 g
iv

en
 a

bo
ve

 s
o 

th
at

 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f s
ai

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 
co

ns
ul

te
d

U
se

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

M
ak

e 
ce

rta
in

 th
at

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

al
so

 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 s
ug

ge
st

io
ns

/o
pi

ni
on

s 
et

c 
w

ill 
be

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

se
en

 to
 h

av
e 

in
flu

en
ce

 o
n 

LD
F

H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

8,
 9

R
eg

ul
ar

 u
pd

at
es

 b
y 

e-
m

ai
l a

nd
 b

ei
ng

 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 m
ee

tin
gs

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
H

AV
S

G
re

en
 B

el
t a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

11
Lo

ca
l N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
s 

an
d 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
si

te
s

Pu
bl

ic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

co
ns

en
su

s 
of

 o
pi

ni
on

 is
 

ac
te

d 
up

on

G
re

en
 b

el
t p

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 tr

af
fic

 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n,

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

ai
r 

po
llu

tio
n 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
hi

gh
 d

en
si

ty
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
, 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
na

tu
re

 
re

se
rv

es
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
se

rio
us

ly
 w

ith
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fi
na

nc
in

g

72



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

H
ar

ro
w

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ill 

Fo
ru

m
11

H
ar

ro
w

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ill

Se
nd

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 fo
ru

m
 to

 
co

ns
id

er
 a

t i
ts

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 w
e 

w
ill 

re
sp

on
d

Fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 c

on
ta

ct
 w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 

of
fic

er
s

Ye
s 

- a
 2

0m
ph

 z
on

e 
on

 H
ar

ro
w

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ill 

is
 d

es
pe

ra
te

ly
 n

ee
de

d 
on

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g 

gr
ou

nd
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
sa

fe
ty

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
on

su
lta

tiv
e 

Fo
ru

m
12

 (c
rim

e 
an

d 
po

lic
in

g 
is

su
es

)
At

te
nd

an
ce

 a
t o

ur
 m

ee
tin

gs
 (b

i-
m

on
th

ly
). 

 P
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

pr
es

en
t a

t 
m

ee
tin

g.
  S

en
d 

in
fo

 to
 s

ec
re

ta
ry

, w
ho

 
w

ill 
fo

rw
ar

d 
re

le
va

nt
 in

fo
 to

 th
e 

gr
ou

p.

Vi
br

an
t a

nd
 in

te
re

st
in

g 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
, d

et
ai

lin
g 

en
ga

gi
ng

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

as
se

m
bl

ed
 g

ro
up

s

H
ar

ro
w

 P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t

11
, 1

2 
(s

oc
ia

l i
nc

lu
si

on
, 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s)

Ar
ea

s 
if 

de
pr

iv
at

io
n,

 
w

ar
ds

 a
nd

 S
O

As
 th

at
 

sh
ow

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
e/

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

LS
P,

 d
ire

ct
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 le

ad
 c

on
ta

ct
, 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 n
et

w
or

k 
Va

rie
ty

 o
f a

pp
ro

ac
he

s,
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

ac
tio

n 
fo

r h
ar

d-
to

-re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

In
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f h
ar

d-
to

-re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ub

lic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

U
se

rs
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
H

ar
d 

co
py

 o
f r

ep
or

ts
 b

y 
po

st
, 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
, e

-m
ai

l
G

oo
d 

se
am

le
ss

 tr
an

sp
or

t h
ub

s,
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t w

he
re

 c
rim

e 
is

 'd
es

ig
ne

d 
ou

t'
H

ar
ro

w
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

ro
un

d 
U

se
rs

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
7,

 8
H

ar
ro

w
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

ro
un

d 
an

d 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
of

 H
ea

ds
to

ne
 

So
ut

h 
w

ar
d

M
ee

tin
gs

, f
or

m
al

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
al

M
ak

e 
pe

op
le

 m
or

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 h

ow
 

m
uc

h 
m

on
ey

 g
oe

s 
in

to
 c

le
an

in
g 

up
 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
r -

 li
tte

r, 
gr

af
fit

i, 
va

nd
al

is
m

Es
se

nt
ia

l t
ha

t p
eo

pl
e 

ha
ve

 re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

sp
ac

e

H
ar

ro
w

 R
et

hi
nk

 S
up

po
rt 

G
ro

up
2,

 3
, 5

, 7
Sp

ea
ke

r a
t m

on
th

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
de

sk
s

M
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

, s
up

po
rte

d 
ho

us
in

g

H
ar

ro
w

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 F
or

um
1,

 3
, 6

, 7
H

ar
ro

w
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
Le

tte
rs

 a
nd

 ta
lk

s 
at

 q
ua

rte
rly

 m
ee

tin
gs

D
is

pl
ay

s 
in

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

, 
co

nt
ac

t/i
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n 
to

 S
ho

pm
ob

ilit
y

H
ar

ro
w

-o
n-

th
e-

H
ill 

st
at

io
n,

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
ed

ge
 o

f t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

, c
af

é 
cu

ltu
re

, p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

H
at

ch
 E

nd
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11

H
at

ch
 E

nd
 a

nd
 

en
vi

ro
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
G

re
en

 B
el

t

Th
ro

ug
h 

su
b-

gr
ou

ps
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
va

rio
us

 to
pi

cs
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
 le

ad
 

co
nt

ac
t

Pu
bl

ic
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

s 
an

d 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
s

H
at

ha
w

ay
 C

lo
se

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

W
rit

te
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 e

ar
ly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

Fu
ll 

an
d 

op
en

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

Ye
s,

 u
se

 o
f G

re
en

 B
el

t a
nd

 
co

m
pu

ls
or

y 
pu

rc
ha

se
 in

fo
H

AV
S

12
 (c

om
m

un
ity

 
co

he
si

on
)

O
pe

n,
 d

ay
tim

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
U

se
 H

AV
S 

as
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 to
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r

73



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

H
ea

ds
to

ne
 L

aw
n 

Te
nn

is
 C

lu
b

7,
 1

0
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 is

su
es

 fo
r t

he
 c

lu
b.

  
Pu

bl
ic

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 q

&a
.

C
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 
an

d 
th

ei
r e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, e

.g
 

nu
rs

er
ie

s 
us

in
g 

sp
or

ts
 c

lu
bs

, c
ou

ld
 

le
ad

 to
 fi

na
nc

ia
l d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
fo

r t
he

 
sp

or
ts

 c
lu

b

H
ea

ds
to

ne
 R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11
H

ea
ds

to
ne

 N
or

th
 a

nd
 

So
ut

h
Fr

eq
ue

nt
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
by

 e
-m

ai
l

At
te

nd
an

ce
 a

t o
ur

 E
xe

c 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
m

ee
tin

gs
, e

ve
ry

 3
rd

 T
hu

rs
da

y 
of

 th
e 

m
on

th
, 8

pm
 - 

10
pm

Th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

N
or

th
 H

ar
ro

w
 

Sh
op

pi
ng

 A
re

a 
af

te
r t

he
 d

em
is

e 
of

 
Sa

fe
w

ay

H
ea

ds
to

ne
 R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11
H

ea
ds

to
ne

 w
ar

ds
E-

m
ai

l, 
le

tte
r o

r m
ee

tin
g

Su
rv

ey
 g

ro
up

 ru
n 

by
 o

ut
si

de
 b

od
y.

  
Su

rv
ey

 re
si

de
nt

s 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
W

ill 
th

e 
SC

I b
e 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
pa

yi
ng

 li
p 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t?

  
Th

e 
pr

es
en

t s
itu

at
io

n 
se

em
s 

to
 b

e:
 "w

e 
ha

ve
 to

 a
sk

 y
ou

 b
ut

 d
on

't 
ha

ve
 to

 a
ct

 
up

on
 w

ha
t y

ou
 s

ay
." 

 H
en

ce
 

w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

di
si

llu
si

on
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
bo

di
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 H
C

TC

H
er

ts
 a

nd
 M

id
dl

es
ex

 W
ild

lif
e 

Tr
us

t
8

Be
in

g 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 a

ny
 p

la
nn

in
g 

th
at

 
af

fe
ct

s 
w

ild
lif

e 
an

d 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
; b

ei
ng

 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
m

ee
tin

gs
; b

ei
ng

 in
vo

lv
ed

 a
t e

ar
lie

st
 

po
ss

ib
le

 s
ta

ge
, a

s 
th

is
 a

llo
w

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ea

rly
.

En
su

re
 a

ll 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 in

pu
t 

in
to

 im
po

rta
nt

 p
la

nn
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

.  
Al

l d
oc

um
en

ts
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
us

er
 

fri
en

dl
y 

to
 p

la
nn

er
s 

an
d 

no
n-

pl
an

ne
rs

 a
lik

e.

W
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ef
ul

 to
 li

st
 w

ho
 y

ou
 w

is
h 

to
 

ge
t i

nv
ol

ve
d,

 i.
e.

 li
st

 w
ho

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
w

ill 
be

, t
hi

s 
w

ill 
al

lo
w

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

su
ch

 a
s 

ou
rs

el
ve

s 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
an

yo
ne

 is
 m

is
si

ng
 th

at
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed

H
er

ts
 a

nd
 M

id
dl

es
ex

 W
ild

lif
e 

Tr
us

t (
H

ar
ro

w
 G

ro
up

)
2,

 8
, 9

, 1
0

St
an

m
or

e 
C

om
m

on
 

LN
R

, G
re

en
 B

el
t, 

al
l 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h

C
on

ta
ct

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
r c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

t 
an

 e
ar

ly
 s

ta
ge

, a
ns

w
er

in
g 

ou
r q

ue
rie

s.
  

M
an

y 
le

tte
rs

 a
re

 d
el

ay
ed

 in
 a

ns
w

er
in

g 
or

 n
ot

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 a

t a
ll.

  F
ac

e 
to

 fa
ce

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
- t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 s
pe

ak
 

di
re

ct
ly

 to
 th

os
e 

co
nc

er
ne

d.

In
fo

rm
 a

s 
w

id
el

y 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e 
an

d 
m

ee
t p

eo
pl

e 
be

fo
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
ar

e 
pu

t i
n 

to
 g

et
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

l i
np

ut
.  

D
on

't 
ju

st
 li

st
en

 a
nd

 
ig

no
re

, t
ak

e 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e'
s 

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
ac

t u
po

n 
th

em
.

Al
lo

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 re
al

ly
 ta

ke
 p

ar
t i

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
.  

An
sw

er
in

g 
ou

r 
qu

er
ie

s.
  F

ac
e 

to
 fa

ce
 m

ee
tin

gs
 if

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

ou
t o

f o
ffi

ce
 h

ou
rs

.  
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 g

iv
in

g 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

or
's

 th
e 

jo
b 

of
 ta

ki
ng

 ti
m

e 
of

f 
w

or
k 

to
 g

o 
an

d 
lo

ok
 a

t p
la

ns
 - 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
pi

es
.

H
er

ts
m

er
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

C
ou

nc
il

11
Pr

es
s 

ad
ve

rts
, m

ai
ls

ho
ts

, s
um

m
ar

y 
le

af
le

ts
, t

ra
ns

la
tio

n 
an

d 
la

rg
e 

pr
in

t

H
illi

ng
do

n 
C

hi
ne

se
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

3,
 7

, 1
0

St
at

io
n 

R
oa

d,
 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
re

a
By

 p
os

t
To

 m
ak

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 u
se

, s
pe

ci
al

 ra
te

s 
fo

r 
le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l u
se

, m
ee

tin
g 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
pr

em
is

es

74



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

H
ob

ar
t P

la
ce

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
C

ou
nc

il 
re

ps
 a

t a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

AG
M

s 
or

 
sp

ea
ki

ng
 to

 lo
ca

l g
ro

up
s

Ev
er

y 
id

ea
 c

os
ts

 m
on

ey
.  

C
he

ap
es

t 
id

ea
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

po
st

er
s 

on
 p

ro
m

in
en

t 
si

te
s 

if 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
th

in
g 

of
 m

om
en

t 
to

 im
pa

rt
H

ol
y 

Tr
in

ity
 C

hu
rc

h
1,

 4
, 6

, 1
0

H
om

e 
Bu

ild
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n

2
Pu

bl
is

h 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

e-
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
do

cu
m

en
ts

Fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 in
c.

 d
ev

el
op

er
s

H
ou

si
ng

 2
1

2,
 3

, 5
, 7

, 8
Fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
, q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s
H

us
ai

ni
 S

hi
a 

Is
la

m
ic

 C
en

tre
11

, 1
2 

(c
om

m
un

ity
 

fu
nd

in
g)

Pl
an

ni
ng

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fu

nd
in

g
Pe

rs
on

al
 c

on
ta

ct
Ph

on
e 

ca
ll 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

of
fic

e
M

aj
or

 is
su

es
 fo

r u
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r a

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

, f
ac

ilit
at

e 
m

em
be

rs
 n

ee
ds

 a
t t

he
 c

en
tre

 a
nd

 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
ls

o 
le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

H
us

ay
ni

 M
ad

ra
sa

h
5,

 7
, 1

0
Vi

si
tin

g 
us

Lo
ca

l m
ee

tin
gs

 a
t o

ur
 p

re
m

is
es

In
di

a 
Li

nk
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

11
Li

br
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
N

or
m

al
 s

ur
ve

y 
m

et
ho

ds
By

 p
os

t, 
su

rv
ey

, q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re

Ip
so

s 
U

K 
Lt

d
11

R
es

ea
rc

h 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e'
s 

vi
ew

s
J 

J 
M

cG
in

le
y 

Lt
d

11
Fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

, '
w

hi
te

 p
ap

er
' f

or
 

co
m

m
en

t
Ji

m
 K

er
r

11
N

or
th

 H
ar

ro
w

Le
tte

r, 
su

rv
ey

, m
ee

tin
gs

Le
tte

rs
, s

ur
ve

ys
Bl

an
ke

t 1
5m

ph
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
on

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l r

oa
ds

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 A
 o

r B
 

ro
ad

s.
  R

oa
ds

 c
lo

se
d 

to
 s

to
p 

co
m

m
ut

er
 ra

t r
un

ni
ng

 a
nd

 to
 fo

rc
e 

tra
ffi

c 
ba

ck
 o

nt
o 

A 
ro

ad
 n

et
w

or
k.

Jo
hn

 C
ob

b
11

H
at

ch
 E

nd
/O

ld
 

R
ed

di
ng

Su
gg

es
t y

ou
 c

irc
ul

at
e 

a 
do

cu
m

en
t 

su
m

m
ar

is
in

g 
w

ha
t t

he
 C

en
tra

l 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t i
s 

try
in

g 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 w
ith

 
th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

im
pa

ct
/is

su
es

 fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g.

Ka
nn

ad
a 

Ba
la

ga
 U

K
11

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 

ch
an

ge
 it

s 
po

lic
y 

to
w

ar
ds

 p
eo

pl
e 

fro
m

 
ab

ro
ad

St
op

 li
st

en
in

g 
to

 'y
es

 m
en

' a
nd

 'y
es

 
w

om
en

' -
 li

st
en

 to
 ra

di
ca

l g
ro

up
s

R
da

ic
al

 re
th

in
k 

- e
th

ni
ci

ty
 a

nd
 

m
in

or
ity

 c
om

m
un

ity
 - 

co
m

pl
et

el
y 

ou
tm

od
ed

.

W
e 

ar
e 

al
l d

iff
er

en
t b

ut
 e

qu
al

, A
si

an
s 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 c

re
at

e 
w

ea
lth

 a
nd

 jo
bs

, v
er

y 
fe

w
 s

cr
ou

ng
er

s 
on

 s
oc

ia
l s

ec
ur

ity
 - 

th
ei

r r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
et

 in
 

fu
ll.

Ke
nt

on
 B

ap
tis

t C
hu

rc
h

7
Be

lm
on

t, 
Ke

nt
on

, 
C

en
tra

l H
ar

ro
w

Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
s 

fo
r c

om
m

en
ts

75



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

Ke
st

re
l G

ro
ve

 N
ur

si
ng

 H
om

e
11

G
re

en
 b

el
t

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
f 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

ne
ed

s 
of

 
gr

ow
in

g 
el

de
rly

 p
op

ul
at

io
n

Su
rv

ey
 e

ld
er

ly
 p

op
ul

at
io

n
G

re
en

 B
el

t -
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 p

ie
ce

 o
f l

an
d 

on
 c

or
ne

r o
f C

om
m

on
 R

d 
an

d 
H

iv
e 

R
d 

-
G

B 
bo

un
da

ry
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
ov

ed
 s

o 
it 

ca
n 

be
 re

le
as

ed
 fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

Ki
ng

sf
ie

ld
 R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11
G

oo
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

up
-to

-d
at

e 
ne

w
s

Ko
da

k
1,

 3
, 4

, 7
, 8

, 9
E-

m
ai

l s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

t e
ar

ly
 

st
ag

e
La

nd
m

ar
k 

H
A

2,
 7

, 8
Li

m
e 

C
lo

se
 a

nd
 

C
on

ife
r W

ay
LB

 W
al

th
am

 F
or

es
t

11
Le

vv
el

 L
td

2
Fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
 o

r k
ey

 g
ro

up
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
/la

nd
ow

ne
rs

/h
ou

se
bu

ild
er

s
Pa

ra
 4

.4
 o

f P
PS

12
 re

co
gn

is
es

 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 e

ar
ly

 d
is

cu
si

so
ns

 w
ith

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

PP
S1

2 
ex

pr
es

se
s 

th
at

 th
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

of
 d

ev
el

op
er

s/
la

nd
ow

ne
rs

 is
 im

po
rta

nt

Li
ttl

e 
C

om
m

on
 R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

, 1
2 

(c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s,

 li
ce

ns
in

g,
 p

ub
lic

 
fo

ot
pa

th
s,

 w
oo

dl
an

ds
 

an
d 

po
nd

s,
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t g

ra
nt

s 
fo

r 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

s)

St
an

m
or

e 
an

d 
Li

ttl
e 

C
om

m
on

Le
tte

r o
r e

-m
ai

l
Lo

ca
l m

ee
tin

gs

Lo
ha

na
 C

om
m

un
ity

 N
or

th
 L

on
do

n
7,

 8
, 1

0
In

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

, m
ee

tin
gs

C
om

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n/

in
vo

lv
em

en
t

Lo
nd

on
 A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
N

H
S 

Tr
us

t
1,

 5
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
; 

in
vi

ta
tio

ns
 to

 m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 

w
he

re
 re

qu
ire

d
Lo

nd
on

 A
ry

a 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
7

Sp
or

ts
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s

U
pd

at
es

, m
ee

tin
gs

Sp
or

ts
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 lo
w

er
 

co
st

s
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f B

re
nt

11
Ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
tw

o 
bo

ro
ug

hs
 a

dj
oi

n
Fo

rm
al

 c
or

re
sp

on
de

nc
e,

 ro
un

d 
ta

bl
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
s

Lo
nd

on
 E

dg
w

ar
e 

C
on

gr
eg

at
io

n
11

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
la

nd
 to

 b
ui

ld
 

pl
ac

es
 o

f w
or

sh
ip

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 (L
D

F)
 a

t 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

Bu
ild

in
g 

ha
lls

 fo
r s

ol
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 

w
or

sh
ip

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

Lo
nd

on
 F

ire
 a

nd
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

11
C

on
su

lta
tio

ns

76



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

Lo
nd

on
 G

re
en

 B
el

t C
ou

nc
il

9
G

re
en

 b
el

t
Pr

es
um

ab
ly

 o
n 

pa
pe

r e
.g

. 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
s 

or
 o

th
er

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

s 
of

 
co

m
m

en
ts

 in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 p
la

ns

O
ur

 in
te

re
st

 is
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 G
re

en
 B

el
t, 

na
tio

na
l 

G
re

en
 B

el
t p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 a
ny

 re
vi

si
on

 to
 

PP
G

2
Lo

nd
on

 K
al

ib
ar

i, 
Ai

d 
In

di
a 

Fo
ru

m
11

Ke
nt

on
, H

A3
G

ro
up

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n,

 s
m

al
l w

rit
e 

up
 a

bo
ut

 
q2

. T
o 

di
st

rib
ut

e 
to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

m
em

be
rs

W
e 

as
 a

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

 
or

ga
ni

se
 lo

ts
 o

f f
un

ct
io

ns
 fr

om
 

M
ar

ch
 to

 N
ov

em
be

r, 
w

he
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
fic

er
s/

m
an

ag
er

s 
ca

n 
co

m
e 

an
d 

pa
ss

 th
ei

r i
de

as
 o

n

C
om

m
un

ity
 le

tti
ng

, c
om

m
un

ity
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r f

un
ct

io
ns

, g
iv

in
g 

re
du

nd
an

t h
ou

se
s 

w
ith

 s
om

e 
ch

an
ge

 
to

 c
om

m
un

iy
t u

se
.

M
er

lin
 C

re
sc

en
t R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

LB
 H

ar
ro

w
Pu

bl
ic

 m
ee

tin
gs

M
aj

or
 P

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, H
ar

ro
w

 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
, M

ak
on

i s
ite

, W
oo

d 
La

ne
, 

R
N

O
H

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
ol

ic
e

11
D

es
ig

ni
ng

 o
ut

 c
rim

e 
on

 a
ll 

m
aj

or
 p

ro
je

tc
s

C
on

ta
ct

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 ti

m
e

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
ol

ic
e,

 H
ar

ro
w

In
 p

la
ce

M
in

d 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

3,
 5

, 7
Po

st
er

s,
 le

af
le

ts
, m

ai
ls

ho
ts

, m
ee

tin
gs

 
on

 s
pe

ci
fic

 to
pi

cs
, f

oc
us

 g
ro

up
s

Fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 g
ro

up
s 

of
 

re
si

de
nt

s/
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s

M
r a

nd
 M

rs
 M

et
ca

lf
1,

 2
, 4

, 5
, 8

, 9
N

ic
e 

to
 s

ee
 C

ou
nc

illo
rs

 o
cc

as
io

na
lly

 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d

M
rs

 E
lto

n
1

Tr
an

sp
or

t
To

o 
ol

d
N

at
io

na
l P

la
yi

ng
 F

ie
ld

s
7,

 9
, 1

0,
 1

1 
(la

nd
 a

nd
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r s
po

rt 
an

d 
pl

ay
)

W
rit

te
n 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

N
av

na
t V

an
ik

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 U

K
5,

 7
, 1

0
In

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 s

em
in

ar
s,

 m
ee

tin
gs

N
et

w
or

k 
R

ai
l

1,
 2

, 6
Se

nd
 d

ra
ft 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 

fo
r c

om
m

en
t

N
ew

to
n 

Pa
rk

 H
or

tic
ul

tu
ra

l S
oc

ie
ty

8,
 9

, 1
2 

(a
llo

tm
en

t 
is

su
es

)
Al

l a
llo

tm
en

t s
ite

s,
 

es
p.

 N
ew

to
n 

Pa
rk

 
W

es
t a

nd
 E

as
t

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

to
 s

ec
re

ta
ry

, a
llo

w
in

g 
on

e 
m

on
th

 re
sp

on
se

 ti
m

e 
fo

r 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n;
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 a

t o
ur

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 m
ee

tin
gs

 - 
co

nt
ac

t 
se

cr
et

ar
y 

fo
r d

et
ai

ls

Sh
ou

ld
 in

vi
te

 a
llo

tm
en

t 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 to
 a

tte
nd

 a
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

gs
 th

at
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

al
lo

tm
en

ts

G
re

at
er

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 a

llo
tm

en
ts

 o
n 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 h

ea
lth

 b
en

ef
its

, i
m

pr
ov

ed
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

te
gr

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

fo
od

.L
ar

ge
r b

ud
ge

t a
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

.

N
ug

en
ts

 P
ar

k 
R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

An
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 is
su

es
 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
H

at
ch

 E
nd

 
an

d 
N

ug
en

ts
 P

ar
k 

in
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r

1)
 N

om
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
m

em
be

r t
o 

at
te

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d,
 2

) r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

dr
af

ts
 o

f 
su

bm
is

si
on

s

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 to
 ta

ke
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 m

ee
t w

ith
 g

ro
up

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ou

rs
el

ve
s

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

of
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l r
oa

ds
 th

at
 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
ch

ra
ct

er
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 a
nd

 it
s 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

77



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

O
ak

 L
od

ge
 C

lo
se

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
St

an
m

or
e 

- c
le

nl
in

es
s 

of
 s

tre
et

s,
 tr

af
fic

 
co

nt
ro

l, 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
in

 fl
at

s

By
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
(q

. 3
)

O
rle

y 
Fa

rm
 S

ch
oo

l
11

Pa
ki

st
an

 S
oc

ie
ty

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
1,

 2
, 3

, 5
, 7

, 8
, 1

0
Le

af
le

ts
, b

ro
ch

ur
es

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

O
ne

-to
-o

ne
 m

ee
tin

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
ch

ai
rs

 
of

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
er

s

N
ee

ds
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 w

el
fa

re
 g

ro
up

s

Pa
ra

di
gm

 H
ou

si
ng

 G
ro

up
2

Pe
te

r R
um

m
er

1,
 2

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0

Pi
nn

er
 a

nd
 H

ea
ds

to
ne

 D
is

tri
ct

 
Sc

ou
ts

7,
 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

2 
(y

ou
th

)
Pi

nn
er

, H
at

ch
 E

nd
, 

N
or

th
 H

ar
ro

w
, 

R
ay

ne
rs

 L
an

e

Yo
ut

h 
fo

ru
m

Pi
nn

er
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11

Pi
nn

er
 a

nd
 P

in
ne

r 
So

ut
h

Pl
ea

se
 s

en
d 

le
tte

rs
/d

oc
um

en
ts

 in
 

go
od

 ti
m

e 
fo

r a
ny

 d
ea

dl
in

es
W

e 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 c

on
ta

ct
 u

s 
w

he
n 

ne
w

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

is
e

Tr
ee

s,
 fr

on
t g

ar
de

ns
, f

oo
tp

at
hs

, p
ar

ks
, 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s,

 g
re

en
 b

el
t, 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ne

ed
s.

Pi
nn

er
 H

ill 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11

Pi
nn

er
 H

ou
se

 S
oc

ie
ty

2
Pi

nn
er

 L
oc

al
 H

is
to

ry
 S

oc
ie

ty
8

Pi
nn

er
C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 w

rit
in

g
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f 
Pi

nn
er

Pi
nn

er
 M

et
ho

di
st

 C
hu

rc
h

7
Pi

nn
er

O
pe

n 
fo

ru
m

s,
 in

te
re

st
 g

ro
up

s,
 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s
C

om
m

un
ity

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
fro

m
 a

ll 
fa

ith
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

Pi
nn

er
 R

oa
d 

& 
Th

e 
G

ar
de

ns
 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
2,

 8
, 9

Pi
nn

er
 R

d,
 T

he
 

G
ar

de
ns

, n
ea

rb
y 

si
de

st
re

et
s

Am
en

ity
 a

nd
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 li

vi
ng

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h

Pi
nn

er
w

oo
d 

Pa
rk

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

12
 (C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s)
Pi

nn
er

w
oo

d 
Pa

rk
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
in

 a
 fo

rm
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 o

ur
 n

ew
sl

et
te

rs
U

se
 o

f g
ro

up
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ou
r 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
re

: p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ith
 

ex
is

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s

Pr
in

ce
s 

D
riv

e 
R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

Py
nn

ac
le

s 
C

lo
se

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
By

 p
os

t

R
am

a 
C

ou
rt 

R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
H

ar
ro

w
-o

n-
th

e-
H

ill,
 

H
ar

ro
w

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

Le
tte

r/c
irc

ul
ar

Fo
ru

m
s?

78



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

 A
llo

tm
en

ts
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

11
Th

e 
ex

-R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

 
Al

lo
tm

en
t s

ite
.  

Ar
ea

 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 T
en

by
 

C
lin

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

Te
nb

y 
H

al
l

W
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r t
o 

at
te

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

r 
gr

ou
p 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

so
 th

at
 I 

ca
n 

re
la

y 
as

 m
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 m
y 

ow
n 

gr
ou

p

Ab
so

lu
te

ly
 c

ru
ci

al
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

vo
lv

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

os
t 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

no
t t

ak
e 

on
 b

oa
rd

 o
us

id
er

's
 c

om
m

en
ts

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
us

t l
ea

rn
 to

 b
e 

m
in

df
ul

 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 v

ie
w

s.
  T

he
y 

w
ill 

us
ua

lly
 

kn
ow

 a
n 

ar
ea

 fa
r b

et
te

r t
ha

n 
th

ey
 d

o,
 

af
te

r a
ll 

it 
is

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

ho
 h

as
 to

 
su

ffe
r t

he
ir 

ba
d 

ju
dg

em
en

ts
.

R
ot

ar
y 

C
lu

b 
of

 K
in

gs
bu

ry
 a

nd
 

Ke
nt

on
11

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

By
 g

iv
in

g 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
w

or
k/

jo
b 

in
 g

oo
d 

co
m

m
itt

ee
Ye

s 
pl

ea
se

, b
ut

 w
he

n 
it 

st
ar

ts
 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ro

pe
rly

N
ot

hi
ng

 n
ew

 b
ut

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
w

ill 
sh

ow
 th

e 
re

al
 is

su
es

 to
 ta

ke
 in

to
 

ac
co

un
t.

R
ox

bo
ro

ug
h 

R
oa

d 
R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

, 1
2 

(H
ar

ro
w

 P
os

t 
O

ffi
ce

 s
ite

)
Po

st
 O

ffi
ce

 s
ite

 a
nd

 
Br

ad
st

ow
 H

ou
se

, 
re

si
tin

g 
of

 li
br

ar
y,

 
H

un
t K

en
na

rd
 s

ite

Le
af

le
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

ith
 s

im
pl

e 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
, m

ee
tin

gs
 a

t a
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ve
nu

e 
fo

r t
he

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 p

ub
lic

ity
 in

 
fre

e 
ne

w
sp

ap
er

s,
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
 a

nd
 

no
tic

eb
oa

rd
s,

 o
n-

st
re

et
 c

an
va

ss
in

g

En
su

rin
g 

al
l m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
an

 re
ad

 in
fo

 in
 th

ei
r 

m
ot

he
r t

on
gu

e

R
oy

al
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
fo

r D
ea

f P
eo

pl
e

3,
 5

, 7
Se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r 

de
af

 p
eo

pl
e

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

, e
-m

ai
lin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
Pu

bl
ic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n

H
ow

 d
ea

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ill 

ac
ce

ss
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

R
oy

al
 N

at
io

na
l O

rth
op

ae
di

c 
H

os
pi

ta
l

11
O

pe
n 

fo
ru

m
 m

ee
tin

gs
 - 

ad
ve

rti
se

d 
in

 
lo

ca
l p

re
ss

, e
-m

ai
l a

nd
 w

eb
si

te
Pu

bl
ic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 m

aj
or

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts

R
PS

11
Le

tte
rs

, e
-m

ai
l, 

w
eb

si
te

, t
el

ep
ho

ne
W

id
er

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
ly

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 o

n 
m

aj
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 - 

50
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e

Sa
lv

at
or

ia
n 

C
ol

le
ge

1,
 3

, 5
, 7

, 8
, 1

0
D

ire
ct

 c
on

ta
ct

, f
oc

us
 g

ro
up

s
Sa

ng
at

 C
en

tre
11

C
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
fo

ru
m

 a
nd

 b
y 

po
st

Sa
ro

jin
i P

at
el

2,
 5

, 8
, 1

0
H

er
ga

 R
oa

d
By

 p
os

t o
r t

el
ep

ho
ne

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

, e
xh

ib
iti

on
s,

 v
id

eo
s

To
 s

to
p 

co
nv

er
te

d 
fla

ts
Sh

er
id

an
 P

la
ce

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11

Sh
ow

m
en

's
 G

ui
ld

 o
f G

re
at

 B
rit

ai
n

2,
 9

W
rit

te
n 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n

N
o 

- I
 a

m
 c

on
fid

en
t y

ou
 h

av
e 

th
is

 
co

ve
re

d
Th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 tr

av
el

lin
g 

sh
ow

m
en

 in
 

fu
lfi

llm
en

t o
f C

irc
ul

ar
 2

2/
91

Sh
ra

vi
ka

 S
at

sa
ng

 M
an

da
l

5,
 7

To
 u

se
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
ce

nt
re

s 
fo

r h
ea

lth
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

: r
ef

le
xo

lo
gy

, 
yo

ga
 a

nd
 c

ou
ns

el
lin

g

Fo
r h

ea
lth

 a
ct

iv
iti

es

SI
C

M
5,

 7
, 1

0
Vi

si
tin

g 
us

Lo
ca

l m
ee

tin
gs

 a
t o

ur
 p

re
m

is
es

So
ut

h 
H

ar
ro

w
 a

nd
 R

ox
et

h 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

11
So

ut
h 

H
ar

ro
w

 a
nd

 
R

ox
et

h
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
at

 m
on

th
ly

 o
r q

ua
rte

rly
 

m
ee

tin
gs

79



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

So
ut

h 
H

ill 
Es

ta
te

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

8,
 9

, 1
2 

(M
O

L,
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n)
So

ut
h 

H
ill 

Es
ta

te
 a

nd
 

So
ut

h 
H

ill 
Av

en
ue

Th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n'

s 
in

te
re

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
So

ut
h 

H
ill 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 a

nd
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 M
O

L

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
M

O
L

Sp
an

is
h 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

10
St

 A
lb

an
's

 C
hu

rc
h 

So
ci

al
 C

lu
b

11
Tr

an
sp

or
t f

or
 d

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

, 
ca

nc
el

la
tio

n 
an

d 
de

la
y 

of
 h

os
pi

ta
l 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

An
yt

hi
ng

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 e
as

e 
lif

e 
fo

r 
pe

ns
io

ne
rs

Tr
an

sp
or

t f
or

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
in

su
ffi

ci
en

t s
ub

si
di

se
d 

ta
xi

 c
ar

ds
 e

tc
; 

ke
ep

 ro
ad

s 
re

pa
ire

d 
an

d 
st

re
et

s 
cl

ea
ne

d

N
ot

 to
 ru

in
 lo

ca
l a

m
bi

en
ce

 w
ith

 o
ve

r-
bu

ild
in

g 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 h
ig

h 
bu

ild
in

gs

St
 G

eo
rg

e'
s 

C
hu

rc
h

11
H

ea
ds

to
ne

R
el

ev
an

t n
ew

sl
et

te
rs

, c
om

m
un

ity
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

fo
ru

m
s

C
om

m
un

ity
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ev
en

ts
 a

t k
ey

 
tim

es
 fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
ne

w
sl

et
te

rs

St
 M

ar
y 

th
e 

Vi
rg

in
, K

en
to

n
4,

 7
, 1

0
St

. A
ns

el
m

's
 C

hu
rc

h,
 B

el
m

on
t

D
o 

no
t k

no
w

 h
ow

 w
e 

as
 a

 c
hu

rc
h 

ca
n 

be
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
In

te
re

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ill 

pr
ob

ab
ly

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 o

th
er

 w
ay

s.

St
. D

om
in

ic
's

 S
ix

th
 F

or
m

 C
ol

le
ge

11

St
. J

oh
n 

th
e 

Ba
pt

is
t C

hu
rc

h
11

Pu
bl

ic
 m

ee
tin

gs
 - 

w
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ha

pp
y 

to
 h

os
t s

uc
h 

ev
en

ts
St

. M
ic

ha
el

 a
nd

 A
ll 

An
ge

ls
 C

hu
rc

h
11

H
ar

ro
w

 W
ea

ld
G

en
er

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
1)

 W
ea

ld
 V

illa
ge

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n;

 2
) C

on
ta

ct
 w

ith
 C

hu
rc

h 
to

dd
le

r g
ro

up
, p

re
-s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 
C

hu
rc

h 
C

ou
nc

il
St

. P
au

l's
 C

hu
rc

h,
 S

ou
th

 H
ar

ro
w

2,
 5

, 7
, 8

, 1
0

So
ut

h 
H

ar
ro

w
Si

m
pl

e 
A4

 s
um

m
ar

y 
sh

ee
ts

 o
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

is
su

es
Th

e 
ro

le
 o

f f
ai

th
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ca
re

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 - 
es

p.
 

to
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

an
d 

el
de

rly
St

. T
he

re
sa

 o
f t

he
 C

hi
ld

 J
es

us
 

C
hu

rc
h

1,
 2

, 5
1,

 2
, 5

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0

St
an

m
or

e 
an

d 
H

ar
ro

w
 H

is
to

ric
al

 
So

ci
et

y
9,

 1
2 

(H
er

ita
ge

 a
nd

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n)

St
an

m
or

e 
C

ha
pe

l
2,

 7
, 1

0
St

an
m

or
e

St
an

m
or

e 
C

hr
is

tia
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
2,

 6
, 7

St
an

m
or

e

St
an

m
or

e 
C

ol
le

ge
10

St
an

m
or

e
St

an
m

or
e 

Tr
ad

in
g 

Po
st

1,
 2

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 8

, 9
, 1

0
St

ar
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
1,

 2
, 3

, 8
, 9

C
on

ta
ct

in
g 

m
e

N
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 - 
bl

an
ke

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 d
o 

no
t y

ie
ld

 c
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
su

lts

80



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

St
ep

h 
M

ou
nt

11
G

ra
ffi

ti
St

re
am

si
de

 H
or

tic
ul

tu
ra

l 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
11

H
or

tic
ul

tu
ra

l m
at

te
rs

, 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 a

 lo
ng

 le
as

e 
on

 o
ur

 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

tra
di

ng
 h

ut
, a

ls
o 

co
ul

d 
do

 
w

ith
 w

at
er

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

al
lo

tm
en

t h
ol

de
rs

 - 
pl

ou
gh

in
g 

fo
r n

ew
 

m
em

be
rs

Su
db

ur
y 

C
ou

rt 
R

es
id

en
ts

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
1,

 2
, 9

Ar
ea

 b
or

de
rin

g 
Su

db
ur

y 
C

ou
rt 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 

an
d 

Pe
bw

or
th

 E
st

at
e

Pr
io

r n
ot

ic
e 

on
 m

aj
or

 s
ch

em
es

 w
hi

ch
 

m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 o

ur
 e

st
at

e 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
C

on
su

lt 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

th
or

ou
gh

ly
C

on
su

lt 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

th
or

ou
gh

ly

T 
D

un
w

oo
dy

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

s
1,

 4
, 8

St
ee

rin
g 

co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

w
ith

 e
xp

er
ts

 fr
om

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

Tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
ca

r p
ar

ki
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Te

m
ps

fo
rd

 C
ou

rt 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

om
pa

ny
11

Te
m

ps
fo

rd
 C

ou
rt 

an
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 a
re

as
To

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f m

ee
tin

gs
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 a
ll 

m
ee

tin
gs

 th
at

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
be

ar
in

g 
on

 o
ur

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
itu

at
io

n
Sp

ee
di

ng
 o

n 
Sh

ee
pc

ot
e 

R
oa

d

Th
am

es
 W

at
er

 P
ro

pe
rty

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

 3
, 4

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

2 
(in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e)

W
at

er
 a

nd
 w

as
te

 
w

at
er

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 

ho
us

in
g 

gr
ow

th

Le
tte

r, 
m

ee
tin

gs
Le

tte
rs

, E
-m

ai
ls

, i
nt

er
ne

t, 
m

ee
tin

gs
, 

fo
ru

m
s

Th
am

es
 W

at
er

 a
re

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
bo

dy
, a

nd
 th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
re

fe
rrd

 to
 in

 

Th
e 

C
re

sc
en

t R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

11
Im

m
ed

ia
te

 lo
ca

lit
y 

of
 

Th
e 

C
re

sc
en

t, 
Sh

af
te

sb
ur

y 
Av

en
ue

 
(s

ou
th

), 
D

ud
le

y 
G

ar
de

ns
, F

ie
ld

er
s 

C
lo

se
, M

er
to

n 
R

oa
d,

 
Th

e 
C

ha
se

 a
t L

ow
er

 
R

oa
d

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

by
 p

os
t o

f a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

, p
lu

s 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

/a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

Th
e 

Fu
rq

ua
n 

Ac
ad

em
y

11
St

an
m

or
e,

 
Q

ue
en

sb
ur

y,
 B

ur
nt

 
O

ak
, E

dg
w

ar
e,

 
Be

lm
on

t, 
Ke

nt
on

In
vi

ta
tio

n 
to

 m
ee

tin
gs

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

fu
tu

re
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Pa

ss
in

g 
on

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

sh
ar

in
g 

vi
ew

s 
ge

nu
in

el
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

di
ve

rs
e 

m
ak

e-
up

 o
f w

or
ld

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 

H
ar

ro
w

Fu
tu

re
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r y
ou

th
. 

M
us

lim
, H

in
du

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 n

ew
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
ce

nt
re

s 
fo

r f
am

ily
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

oc
ca

si
on

s 
Th

e 
H

om
el

es
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
hu

rc
h 

in
 

H
ar

ro
w

 (T
H

AT
C

H
)

11
C

en
tra

l a
nd

 w
es

t s
id

e 
R

ep
or

ts
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l a

ss
em

bl
ie

s,
 i.

e.
 

'to
w

n 
m

ee
tin

gs
'

M
or

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f 

lo
ca

l v
ie

w
s 

on
 p

la
nn

in
g

1)
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
; 2

) i
m

pr
ov

ed
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
cy

cl
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

tra
ffi

c
Th

e 
JT

S 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

11

81



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

Th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 G

re
en

 B
el

t C
ou

nc
il

9
G

re
en

 b
el

t i
ss

ue
s

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
G

re
en

 B
el

t o
r a

ny
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r c
ha

ng
e 

of
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

th
at

 
m

ig
ht

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
G

re
en

 B
el

t, 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 
or

 e
xt

er
na

lly

Pa
rti

cu
la

r a
tte

nt
io

n 
to

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
n 

m
aj

or
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
G

re
en

 B
el

t a
nd

 
re

du
nd

an
t f

ar
m

la
nd

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 o

n 
si

te
s 

in
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r, 

of
 w

hi
ch

 H
ar

ro
w

 h
as

 m
an

y

Th
e 

Pi
nn

er
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11

Pi
nn

er
 a

nd
 P

in
ne

r 
So

ut
h 

w
ar

ds
As

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 c
re

de
nc

e 
w

ill 
be

 ta
ke

n 
of

 th
e 

po
in

ts
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

vi
ew

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d.

  S
uf

fic
ie

nt
 ti

m
e 

m
us

t b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 fo
r a

 fu
ll 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

 m
ul

tip
le

 
pa

pe
r c

op
ie

s 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
an

d 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
.

C
ou

nc
il 

of
fic

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

tte
nd

 o
ur

 
tw

ic
e-

ye
ar

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
, a

nd
 th

os
e 

of
 

ot
he

r r
es

id
en

ts
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
, a

nd
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 to

 s
pe

ak
, o

r a
ns

w
er

 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

LD
F.

  M
or

e 
po

w
er

 a
nd

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
gi

ve
n 

to
 lo

ca
l c

ou
nc

illo
rs

. 

Se
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 s
he

et
 a

tta
ch

ed
 to

 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
.

Th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
ur

ea
u 

Li
m

ite
d

1,
 2

, 3
, 7

, 8
Th

e 
Sa

lv
at

io
n 

Ar
m

y
11

So
ut

h 
H

ar
ro

w
C

on
su

lta
tio

n
C

on
su

lta
tio

n
Tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 P
ar

ki
ng

Th
re

e 
Va

lle
ys

 W
at

er
2,

 4
, 8

, 1
2 

(w
at

er
 

re
so

ur
ce

s)
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pa

pe
rs

 a
nd

 re
po

rts

Ti
th

e 
Fa

rm
 S

oc
ia

l C
lu

b
11

Sp
or

ts
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s

M
ee

tin
gs

So
ci

al
Tr

an
sp

or
t f

or
 L

on
do

n
11

Al
l

Tr
an

sp
or

t f
or

 L
on

do
n

1
H

ar
ro

w
-o

n-
th

e-
H

ill
E-

m
ai

l
M

ay
or

's
 L

on
do

n 
Pl

an
Tr

in
ity

 C
hu

rc
h 

H
ar

ro
w

1,
 7

, 8
C

om
m

un
ity

 fo
ru

m
s,

 b
as

ed
 lo

ca
lly

Tr
us

te
es

 o
f T

 G
 B

la
ck

w
el

l T
ru

st
9

C
op

se
 F

ar
m

, H
ar

ro
w

 
W

ea
ld

Tu
rle

y 
As

so
ci

at
es

1,
 2

, 3
, 6

, 8
, 9

W
or

ks
ho

ps
, f

oc
us

 g
ro

up
s,

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 
fo

r w
rit

te
n 

su
bm

is
si

on
s

W
ar

de
n 

H
ou

si
ng

11
R

ay
ne

rs
 L

an
e

W
or

ks
ho

ps
W

at
es

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Lt

d
11

Al
l a

re
as

 o
f 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n

Be
in

g 
at

 th
e 

fro
nt

 e
nd

 o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

W
at

fo
rd

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il

1,
 6

W
el

ld
on

 A
ct

iv
ity

 G
ro

up
7

Fo
rm

al
 m

ee
tin

gs
 fo

r d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

on
 k

ey
 

ar
ea

s
In

vo
lv

em
en

t b
ef

or
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

Bu
si

ne
ss

11
W

es
t L

on
do

n 
W

as
te

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
4

W
ild

tre
e 

H
ot

el
s

11
H

ar
ro

w
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

an
d 

its
 b

or
de

rs
Sm

al
l f

or
um

s 
w

ith
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 s
ub

je
ct

s 
- 

m
in

ut
es

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 to

 
th

os
e 

in
te

re
st

ed

G
et

tin
g 

ne
w

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
to

 H
ar

ro
w

 
an

d 
m

ak
in

g 
it 

ea
si

er
 fo

r t
ho

se
 la

re
ad

y 
th

er
e 

to
 fl

ou
ris

h

82



A
pp

en
di

x 
2

W
oo

dl
an

ds
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
1,

 2
, 4

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0
St

an
m

or
e,

 B
en

tle
y 

Pr
io

ry
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e,
 

H
ar

ro
w

 W
ea

ld
 

C
om

m
on

C
ou

nc
il 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
 

ge
ne

ra
l o

r c
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

g.
  W

e 
co

ul
d 

pr
in

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 o
ur

 
ne

w
sl

et
te

r.
W

or
ld

 S
ik

h 
Fo

un
da

tio
n

5,
 7

, 1
0

*K
ey

 to
 is

su
es

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t c

od
es

1
Tr

an
sp

or
t

2
H

ou
si

ng
3

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t

4
W

as
te

/re
cy

cl
in

g
5

H
ea

lth
6

Sh
o p

pi
ng

/to
w

n 
7

So
ci

al
/c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

8
Th

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t
9

G
re

en
 B

el
t

10
Ed

uc
at

io
n

11
A

ll 
pl

an
ni

ng
 is

su
es

12
O

th
er

 (s
pe

ci
fie

d)

83



84

This page is intentionally left blank



Meeting:                    Strategic Planning Advisory Panel 
Date:                         Tuesday 13th September 2005 
Subject:                     Draft London Plan Alterations – Housing Provision
                                  Targets; Planning for Waste 
Responsible Officer: Director of Strategy (Urban Living) 
Contact Officer:         Dennis Varcoe 
Portfolio Holder:        Portfolio Holder for Planning, Development and  
                                  Housing 
Key Decision:            No 
Status:                       Public 
 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 

The Mayor in July 2005 published draft alterations to London Plan policies on 
Housing provision targets, Waste and Minerals.  The consultation is primarily 
aimed at the London Assembly and the GLA Group, but the Mayor is also keen to 
hear from London Boroughs and other key stakeholders. However, because the 
deadline is Friday 9th September, the Mayor is to be advised that the Council 
wishes to make its representations as part of the 3 month public consultation 
programmed to commence in October.  
 
 
Decision Required 

The Panel is requested to:- 
 

1. Note the publication of draft Alterations to London Plan policies on Housing 
provision targets, Waste and Minerals; and 

2. Subject to confirmation by Cabinet or the portfolio holder, confirm that the 
Council wishes to respond at the formal public consultation stage in 
October, and the Mayor be advised accordingly. 

 
 
Reason for report 

The Mayor has provided London Boroughs with the opportunity to comment on the 
draft Alterations at an early stage. The Council needs to consider whether it wishes 
to respond at this stage, and advise the Mayor accordingly. 
 
 
Benefits 
 

The Council has a fundamental interest in the draft Alterations because of the 
implications for the production of the Local Development Framework, and would 
therefore wish to submit fully considered comments on them.   

Agenda Item 10
Pages 85 to 88

85



 
Cost of Proposals  

The cost of preparing an informed response to the draft Alterations will be 
contained within current approved Departmental Budget.  

 
Risks 

 Failure to respond at this stage would not be serious as the Council will be able to 
respond at the 3 month consultation period starting in October. However, it would 
be courteous to respond at this stage to explain the Council’s stance.   
 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
It might be interpreted that the Council has no views or concerns with the 
Alterations, or the background studies against which they were prepared. 
  
 
Section 2: Report 
Brief History  
Although the London Plan was published in February 2004, the Mayor had 
expressed the intention to bring forward early Alterations on Housing provision 
and Waste in advance of the first review of the Plan. The Draft Alterations were 
accordingly published in July 2005. Copies of the draft Alterations have been put 
into the Members Library.  
Members have been advised that officers have participated in the preparation of 
information for the Borough to be included in the 2004 London Housing Capacity 
Study.  This required extensive work and involved meetings with GLA officers.  
As with the results from the previous study, information from the capacity study 
has informed the production of draft housing provision figures. Borough officers  
have also participated in the collection of information on waste management sites 
and related activities which has informed the provision and allocation of land 
requirements at sub-regional level contained in the Draft Alterations on Waste.      
 
Options considered 
Members will be aware that the Mayor has also recently published the draft West 
London Sub-Regional Development Framework (WLSRDF) for consultation. The 
deadline for responses is significantly later (28th October 2005).  Within the draft  
West London SRDF there are a number of matters relating to the implications of 
the Housing Capacity Study and housing provision.  In addition, under Waste 
(para 87) the proposed action specifically asks stakeholders to respond to the 
consultation on the draft Alterations (rather than through the WLSRDF response). 
A special meeting of the Panel will consider the Harrow and draft West London 
response to the draft WLSRDF.        
Discussions amongst West London boroughs have elicited that Boroughs in 
general would prefer to wait until they have given full and detailed consideration 
to both documents and the detailed research studies supporting them, before 

86



submitting any comments on them. This approach is to be supported. 
Appropriate opportunities will exist for members to comment at the public 
consultation stage on the draft Alterations programmed for October 2005.  Under 
these circumstances it is suggested that the Mayor be advised that the Council 
will comment at that stage. 
 
Consultation 
No formal consultations undertaken. 
 
Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications in preparing this initial response.  
 
Legal Implications. 
No comment. 
 
Equalities Impact 
The Waste Alterations aim to promote equality of opportunities. 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Draft London Plan Alterations – Housing Provision Targets – July 2005 
2004 London Housing Capacity Study – July 2005 
Draft London Plan Alterations – Planning for Waste/Planning for Minerals-July 
2005 
Recycling and Recovery facilities – Sites investigation in London – July 2005 
Draft Sub Regional Development Framework – West London – June 2005. 

87



88

This page is intentionally left blank


